
 
CITY OF MAYER  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, MARCH 11, 2019 

6:30 PM 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
4. Public Comment (Please limit comments to 5 minutes) 

 
5. Consent Agenda 

A. Minutes 
1. February 25, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
2. February 25, 2019 City Council Workshop Minutes 

 
B. Claims 

 
C.  2019 Fee Schedule – Add Landscape Escrow – Ordinance 227 

 
6. Reports and Recommendations of City Departments, Consultants, Commissions and Committees 

A. Administrative 
1. 2018 Audit Presentation – Abdo, Eick and Meyers 
2. Long Term Plan Presentation – Abdo, Eick and Meyers  
3. 4th Quarter 2018 Financial Report 
4. Transfer of Funds – Resolution 3-11-19-14 
5. City Hall Generator – Carverlink  

 
B. Planning Commission  

1. Agave Mexican Restaurant – Site Plan at 421 Ash Avenue – Resolution 3-11-19-15 
2. Text Amendment to amend Title XV: Land Usage – Ordinance 228 

 
C. Public Works 

1. Public Works Seasonal Position   
 

7. City Council Reports 
 

8. Other Business  
 

9.  Upcoming Meetings & Events 
March 12, 2019 Park Commission Meeting  

1



March 25, 2019 City Council Meeting 
March 26, 2019 EDA Meeting  

 
10.  For Your Information 

March 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  
 

11. Adjournment  

2



MAYER CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – FEBRUARY 25, 2019 
Call Regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Dodge 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Dodge, Council Members Boder, Butterfield, and McNeilly 
ABSENT:   Council Member Stieve-McPadden 
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, Public Works Kuntz, and Deputy Clerk Gildemeister  
ALSO PRESENT:   Stephen Young, Ronda Brade, Lacey Bentz, Jason Hilgers 
 
The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member McNeilly with a second by Council Member Butterfield to approve 
the agenda as presented.  Motion Carried 4/0 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member Boder with a second by Council Member McNeilly to approve the 
Consent Agenda with the removal of Resolution 2-25-29-10 from Consent Agenda and added to Regular 
Agenda for discussion.  Motion Carried 4/0.    

1. Approve the Minutes of the February 11, 2019 Regular Council Meeting. 
2. Approve Claims for the Month of February 2019. Check numbers 22116 to 22146. E-check numbers 

5182E to 5188E. 
3. Acknowledge City Engineer Summary Report of Projects during January 2019.  
4. Acknowledge Public Works Report of Activities from January 24 to February 21, 2019. 
5. Acknowledge Fire Department Report for the Month of January 2019. 
6. Acknowledge Sheriff’s Department Report for the Month of January 2019. 
7. City Administrators Report for the Month of February 2019. 

 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
1. Approve Purchase of Digital Documentation System – Staff asked Council for approval to purchase a 

digital documentation management system. The move to a digital documentation system would allow staff 
to capture, extract, and classify information faster and efficiently while significantly reducing the current 
paper storage. Staff acquired to proposals: 
Coordinated Business Systems-GlobalSearch C20 $10,832.00 
OPG3-Laserfische      $6,884.40 
A MOTION to Approve the Purchase of Digital Documentation System for an amount not to exceed 
$10,832.00 was made by Council Member Boder and seconded by Council Member Butterfield. Council 
agreed to let Staff choose the best system for City Hall. Motion carried 4/0. 
 

2. Approve Resolution 2-25-19-11 Closing and Transferring Funds – Tabled 
Council directed Staff to contact Abdo, Eicke, & Meyer LLC for an explanation of why a negative amount 
where left in these funds. 
 
 
 

3



3. Approve Resolution 2-25-19-12 Termination of MN CLN Services Contract – City Administrator is 
requesting termination of contract with MN CLN Services for cleaning services for City Hall and 
Community Center. Per contact, cleaning services have continuously been below expectations and did not 
improve over time. Upon approval, a 30-day notice will be given to the company as of March 1, 2019.  
A MOTION to Approve Resolution 2-25-19-12 Termination of MN CLN Service Contract and a 30-day 
notice given on March 1, 2019 was made by Council Member McNeilly and seconded by Council Member 
Boder. Mayor Dodge directed Staff to talk to City Attorney and draft a letter stating that there will be no 
payment for dates the cleaners did not provide cleaning services per contract. Motion Carried 4/0 

 
4. Approve Resolution 2-25-19-10 Road/Alley Closure Request for Knuckleheads Bar and Grill – Russell 

Rolf, Knuckleheads Bar and Grill, asked the Council for permission to close the road/alley behind 
Knuckleheads on July 27, 2019. Mr. Rolf stated would like to host a concert and bands will be playing from 
2 to 6 p.m. and 7 to 11 p.m. Orange fencing will be put up to enclose the area where alcohol will be 
consumed. Council asked Mr. Rolf to notify all homeowners who will not have access to their properties 
due to the alley closure. A MOTION to Approve Resolution 2-25-19-10 Road/Alley Closure Request for 
Knuckleheads Bar and Grill on July 27, 2019 was made by Council Member McNeilly and seconded by 
Council Member Butterfield. Motion carried 4/0. 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS 

• Council Member McNeilly shared that the Park Board continues to discuss parks/parking lot topics. 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, a MOTION was made by Council Member Butterfield and seconded by 
Council Member Boder to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m.  Motion Carried 4/0 

 
 

                           _________________________________ 
                                  Mike Dodge, Mayor 

 
Attest: ______________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy City Clerk 

4



MAYER CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES – FEBRUARY 25, 2019 
 
Call Work Session to order at 7:01 p.m. by Mayor Dodge. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Dodge, Council Members Boder, McNeilly, and Butterfield  
ABSENT:  Council Member Stieve-McPadden 
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, Public Works Kuntz, Public Works Hilgers, and Deputy Clerk 
Gildemeister  
ALSO PRESENT:  Steven Young 
. 

 
1. Discussion on Pay Philosophy and Step/Range: City Administrator McCallum presented 

Council with information on establishing a Pay Philosophy for City Staff. The City currently 
does not have an established pay structure. After reviewing four examples of pay philosophies, 
Council agreed that they like a combination of example 3 and 4. Council stated that a Step 
Philosophy will give clear lines to employees. Council agreed the City has struggled with range 
formats in the past and they are more comfortable with the Step format. Mayor Dodge requested 
that a statement be added to the policy stating the Step format be reviewed every two years. 
 

2. Discussion on Public Works Director Position: City Administrator McCallum presented 
Council with her recommendation for the transition of Public Works Kyle Kuntz to Public 
Works Director Position. Public Works Kuntz will be able to take his Class A Waste Water 
License Test this spring and if successful, bring operations in-house. The City currently contracts 
with Greg Kluver, Kluver Consulting for it’s Class A Waste Water License at a cost of 
$1800.00/month. City Administrator recommended moving Public Works Kuntz into a Public 
Works Director position when he passes his test and can take on the responsibilities of the Waste 
Water Treatment Facility, eliminating the need for a contracted license holder. City 
Administrator recommended an hourly wage of $34.00 for an annual salary of $70,720 for the 
Public Works Director Position. Along with the transition of Public Works Kuntz, City 
Administrator recommends transitioning Public Works Worker II Jason Hilgers to Public Works 
Worker I. Hilgers wage would increase from $24.00/hour, $49,920 annually to $26.10/hour, 
$54,288 annually. Taking into account the 2019 budgeted increase, the City would see an 
increase of $17,202 for Kuntz and $1,872 for Hilgers for a total of $$19,074. The City currently 
budgets $21,600 annually for Kluver Consulting. The City will also be taking on snow plowing 
for the 2019-2020 season with a budget of $20,000 to cover salary costs. 
 
Council discussed at length the Waste Water Class A License vs. the Public Works Director 
Position. Council reviewed the Wage Compensation Study Step chart. Mayor Dodge was 
concerned that the $34.00 would start the Public Works Director Position at the top of the Step 
Level (Step 7 of 8 step levels). Council questioned if they have the correct comparables. After 
more discussion on the Wage Compensation Study, Council stated wage is not the issue and 
would be willing to restructure the step amounts as to start the Public Works Director Position at 
a mid-range level of 4 or 5. Council would like to continue discussion on the Public Works 
Director Position and directed City Administrator to acquire job descriptions and waste water 
data from Watertown and other surrounding cities for further discussion. 
 

5



3. Discussion on Liaison Seats on Commissions: Staff asked for direction pertaining to Council 
Commission Liaisons being able to vote. Current ordinance language states that a Council 
Liaison can cast a vote. After a brief discussion, Council agreed to leave the language in the 
ordinance as is. No direction given to Staff. 

 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED 
There being no further business, the work session was adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 
 

                           _______________________________ 
                                 Mike Dodge, Mayor 

Attest: ______________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy City Clerk 

6



22147 Security Bank FD Loan $3,716.09
22148 Carver County Liquor License - Background Checks $300.00
22149 Bobs Repair of Mayer Inc Service of FD 2005 Freidgtliner $1,077.28
22150 Boltons and Menk Engineering Services $5,611.00
22151 Carver County Street Salt $2,006.46
22152 Core and Main Water Meters $650.85
22153 Emergency Medical Training FF Training - Juberian $1,375.00
22154 Emergency Response Solutions Cairns - FD $54.87
22155 Fremont Industries Coagulant WWTP $972.00
22156 Grainger WWTP Maintenance - Air Unit $493.20
22157 Herald Journal Publishing PH - Ordinance Amendment $48.33
22158 Kluver Consulting WWTP Contract $900.00
22159 Lano Equipment Oil and Filter - Maintenance $84.57
22160 Mayer Lumber F.D. Supplies $250.56
22161 Metro West Inspections Inspections Contract $5,624.34
22162 MN Service Inc Cleaning Services $726.25
22163 Minnesota Dept of Health Connection Fee $1,331.00
22164 Peak Heating and Cooling Community Center Servicing $132.50
22165 Ratwik, Roszak and Maloney Legal Services $4,040.35
22166 Security Bank H.S.A. - Employee Benefits $875.00
22167 Techstar IT Solutions IT Services - Phone $478.30
22168 Tom Goepfert On Call $100.00
22169 United Farmers Coop PW Supplies - Boots $394.98
22170 VISA CH Projector, Adobe Software, PW supplies $3,029.63
22171 Water Conservation Service Inc Leak Locate - Grey Owl Court $390.91
22172 Widmer Construction Snow Removal $17,140.00
22173 WM Mueller and Sons Street Salt/Sand $1,463.70
5189E ADP LLC Payroll Processing Fee $81.89
5190E Perferred One Employee Benefits $4,142.35
5191E Frontier WWTP $99.18
5192E Xcel Energy Electric - City Facilities and Street Lights $6,214.56

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST 
March 11, 2019 

Checks: 22147 - 22173, 5189E - 5209E

7



5193E Xcel Energy Street Lights $1,923.20
5194E Verizon Wireless OSH Lift Station $13.82
5195E Voided Voided
5196E PERA Employee Benefits $1,459.21
5197E PERA Employee Benefits $212.04
5198E PERA Employee Benefits $274.40
5199E ADP LLC Payroll $8,484.16
5200E ADP LLC Payroll $3,734.08
5201E Voided Voided
5202E Security Bank ACH Fee $21.24
5203E ADP LLC Al Edholm $80.28
5204E ADP LLC Al Edholm $74.87
5205E PERA Report Fee $10.00
5206E PERA Report Fee $10.00
5207E Frontier WWTP $81.38
5208E Verizon Wireless Fire Department Phone $41.19
5209E Verizon Wireless City Cell Phones $244.01

$80,469.03

8



CITY OF MAYER 
CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA  

 
ORDINANCE #227 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2019 FEE SCHEDULE 

 
The City Council of the City of Mater, Minnesota, ordains as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Adoption of 2019 Fee Schedule.  On January 14, 2019, the City Council 
enacted Ordinance No. 226, establishing the 2019 Fee Schedule. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of 2019 Fee Schedule.  The 2019 Fee Schedule is hereby 
amended as set forth in Attachment A.   
 
Section 3.  Summary Approval.  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 412.191, subd. 
4, the City Council hereby determines that publication of the title and a summary of this 
Ordinance will clearly inform the public of the intent and effect of this Ordinance.  The 
text of the summary of this Ordinance, entitled “Official Summary of Ordinance No.227 
a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B, is hereby approved and the City 
Council determines that it clearly informs the public of the intent and effect of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 4.  Publication, Inspection, and Posting.  The City Administrator is hereby 
directed that only the title and this Ordinance and the attached summary with a notice that 
a printed copy of this Ordinance is available for inspection by any person during regular 
office hours at the office of City Hall.  A copy of the entire text of the Ordinance shall 
also be posted at the Mayer City Hall, 413 Bluejay Avenue, Mayer, Minnesota. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption and 
publication according to law. 
 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Mayer this 11th day of March, 
2019. 
              
        Mike Dodge, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
       
Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Title and Official Summary of Ordinance No. 227 Published in the ______ Newspaper on 
_________, 2019. 

9



Attachment B 
 

CITY OF MAYER 
CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA  

 
ORDINANCE #227 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2019 FEE SCHEDULE 

 
OFFICIAL SUMMARY 

 
March 11, 2019 

 
 The following is the official summary of Ordinance No. 227 of the City of Mayer, 
adopted on March 11, 2019.  The City of Mayer has amended the 2019 Fee Schedule to 
include the landscape escrow fee. 
 
A PRINTED COPY OF THE ENTIRE ORDINANCE IS AVAILABLE FOR 
INSPECTION AND REVIEW BY ANY PERSON AT THE OFFICE OF CITY 
HALL OF THE CITY OF MAYER AT 413 BLUEJAY AVENUE, MAYER, 
MINNESOTA 55360. 
 
       
Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
 
Published in the _________________________ on ________________________, 2019. 

 
 

 
 

10



2019 Administrative Fees

2019 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

Community Center Gym, Bar area and Kitchen Weddings $350.00
*Gym, Bar area and Kitchen Non Residents $350.00
*Gym, Bar area and Kitchen Residents $250.00
Bar area and Kitchen Only Residents $150.00
Bar area and Kitchen Only Non Residents $200.00
Extra Day Fee $75.00
Gym only (2 hours minimum) $18.50
Church/Funeral $50.00
Birthday Party Rental (4 hours) - Resident $75.00
Birthday Party Rental (4 hours) - Non-Resident $100.00
Rental for Non-Profit Local/Non-Local Organization One/Half Rental Cost 
Damage Deposit $150.00
*Events other than weddings the resident/nonresident rates apply

Electronic Sign For Profit week $7.00
For Profit month $20.00
Non Profit week $5.00
Non Profit month $10.00
Public Entity week or month Free
Out of Town one month $30.00
Out of Town one week $10.00

Concession Stand Damage Deposit $25.00
Four hour rental $25.00

Landscape Escrow $2,500.00

Copy and Fax Costs Copy Cost $.25 per page (BW) $.50 per page (Color)
City map Cost
Zoning map $15.00 per map
Copy: Comprehensive Plan $50.00 per document
Copy: Zoning Ordinance $50.00 per document
Copy: City Standard Specs & Plates $50.00 per document
Copy: Subdivision Ordinance $50.00 per document
Copy: Code Of Ordinances $75.00 per document

1

11



2019 Administrative Fees

Copy: Financial Statement/Audit $50.00 per document
Copy: City Budget $30.00 per document
Copy: City Fee Schedule $30.00 per document

Pet Fees & Fines 
Dog License - Natural Annual renewal January 1st $10.00
Dog License - Neutered Annual renewal January 1st $7.50

Lifetime Dog License $10.00
Duplicate license $2.00
Unlicensed dog fine Double License Fee
Animal pick up charge Actual Cost
Impound fines Acutal Cost 
Running at large/creating nuisance - 1st Offense Warning
Running at large/creating nuisance - 2nd Offense $50.00
Running at large/creating nuisance - 3rd Offense $75.00
                          -Subsequent Offenses (each) $100.00

Chicken License Initial Fee $50.00
Annual Renewal $25.00

Bee License Initial Fee $50.00
Annual Renewal $25.00

Service Fees & Miscellaneous Public Notice and Mailing Actual Cost plus Staff Time
Recording Fees Actual Cost plus Staff Time
Returned Check Charge $25.00 plus City Bank Fees
Election Filing Fee $15.00
Delinquent Charge Certification $50.00
Special Assessment Search $20.00
Peddler License & Background Check Each $100.00
Right-of-Way Permit - Large Utilities $250.00
IRS Guidlnes - Travel Reimbursement 0.58/mile

Tobacco Licensed by Carver County

Fines

Parking Violations First Offense $25.00 plus towing costs
Second Offense $50.00 plus towing costs
Third Offense $75.00 plus towing costs

2

12



2019 Administrative Fees

Minimmum Tow Fee COST
Impound Lot Fee COST

Weeds Weed Violation Mowing - per hour charge/2 hr min. $75.00
Snow Removal Snow Removal - per hour charge/2 hour min. $75.00

Abandoned Vehicles Abandoned Vehicle Violation-1st offense/plus towing $60.00
Abandoned Vehicle Violation-2nd offense/plus towing $150.00
Abandoned Vehicle Violation-3rd offense/plus towing $200.00
Water Service Disconnect/Reconnect Charge $50.00

 

3

13



2019 BUILDING PERMIT FEES

Building Permits Building Permits  Fees
TOTAL VALUATION
$1.00 to $500.00 $25.58 for the first $500.00 plus $3.36 for each additional $100.00
$501.00 to $2,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $2,000.00

$76.25 for the first $2,000.00 plus $15.40 for each additional $1,000.00 or 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00 fraction thereof, to and including $25,000.00

430.35 for the first $25,000.00 plus $11.11 for each additional $1,000.00
$25,001.00 to $50,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000.00

$708.10 for the first $50,000.00 plus $7.70 for each additional $1,000.
$50,001.00 to $100,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000.00 

$1093.10 for the first $100,000.00 plus $6.16 for each additional 
$100,001.00 to $500,000.00 $1,000.00 or fraction thereof

$3,557.10 for the first $500,000.00 plus $5.23 for each addition
$500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00 $1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000.00

$6,172.10 for the first $1,000,000.00 plus $4.02 for each additional 
$1,000,001.00 and up $1,000.00 or fraction thereof

Building Permit Fee 
Schedule is 100% of the above fee schedule, plus 10%, plus a State Surcharge as 
follows:
$1,000,000 or less =  .0005 x the valuation (minimum of $5.00) 
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 =  $500.00 +  .0004  x  ( Value   - $1,000,000)  
Greater than $2,000,001 see State Table.

OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES AS PER CONTRACT
Terms, Conditions & Fee 

Inspections outside of normal business hours minimum two hour charge $75.00/hour  ($150.00 Minimum)
Re-Inspection Fee $50.00
Inspections for which no fee is specifically indicated $50.00
 Additional plan review required by changes, additions, or revisions to approved 
plans
Minimum one half hour charge
For miscellaneous and special services, as per contract $50.00
City Sewer Inspection/Hookup $45.00
City Water Inspection/Hookup $45.00
Moved in House/Garage $50.00/hr + Mileage from Loretto
Moved in House/Foundation/LL Finish Valuation

14



Plan Check Fee Is 65% of the Permit Fee for Residential and Commercial Projects
 

Plumbing Permit Fees $5.50 per fixture or minimum of $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Plumbing Change outs: Water heaters or softeners $75.00 ea + $1.00 Surcharge

Heating, Air Conditioning, 
& Gas Piping Permit Fees  New Home Construction

 For EACH Heating or Air Conditioning unit, including Air Exchange units, $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Heating and Air Conditioning replacement is considered one unit $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
In-Floor heat systems, gas logs/fireplaces, $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
wood burning and factory fireplaces, etc. plus $1.00 Surcharge $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge

 Permit issued for gas line/gas piping only $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Masonry Fireplaces requires a regular building permit, submit plans & fee is 
based on Valuation

Residential General Fees Re-Roof: $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Re-Side: $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Re-Window: If replaced with the same size $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Any size change requires a regular building permit
Fence: (Over 7' based on value) $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Shed: (>200 SQ FT - Based on Value) $75.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge
Residential Demo: $100.00 plus $1.00 Surcharge

Commercial Project Fees: Demo Permit Fees Valuation
 Re-Roof and Re-Side Projects Valuation 
Plumbing & Mechanical Permit Fees Valuation
Plumbing Minimum Valuation 
Mechanical Minimum Valuation
Fire Sprinkler Systems require a regular building permit Valuation 
Fire Alarm Valuation 

15



2019 PLANNING & ZONING FEES

Planning & Zoning 
Fees

Annexation Application Fee $500.00
Appeal $200.00

Vacation of Property, Public Right-of-Way & 
Easements $300.00
Zoning Permit (Fences 6' or less, swimming pools, 
shds less than 120 sf, etc) One Time Admin Fee $50.00

Concept Plan One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,000.00

Preliminary Plat One Time Fee $500 & $15/lot
Escrow $5,000.00

Final Plat One Time Fee $400 & $15/lot 
Escrow $5,000.00

Concept Planned Unit Development (PUD) One Time Fee $300.00
Escrow $1,000.00

Preliminary Planned Unit Developent (PUD) One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Final Planned Unit Development (PUD) One Time Fee $400.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Comprehensive Plan Amendment One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Conditional Use, Variance, Interim Use Permit One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Minor Subdivision (lot division or consolidation) One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Site Plan One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Rezoning One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Zoning Text Amendments One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

Other Planning Requests of the City Council One Time Fee $500.00
Escrow $1,500.00

16



Utility Feasibility Study - Council approval required Cost

MEETINGS Councilmember per diem for Special Meeting $30.00
Board and Commission Per diem $30.00
Special Council Meeting held before Regular 
Meeting $150.00
Special Council Mtg other date -requested by 
residents $150.00
Special Planning Commission Meeting $210.00

PARK DEDICATION 
FEE Per Ordinance 

In addition to the application fee, the applicant for development plan review must also pay all costs incurred by the City including staff 
time, legal, engineering, administrative, building inspection services, and services other persons or entities employed or contracted by the 
City for, or in any way involved in, the review and inspection of the development plan and public utility extensions contemplated thereby, 
including but not limited to streets, sidewalks, trails, water lines,sanitary sewer lines, storm sewer lines, street lights, electric and gas lines, 
water retention areas and all other improvements intended for public use or benefit contructed or caused to be constructed by the owner 
and under no condition shall the fee be refunded for failure of the City to approve the development plan. All charges incurred for this 
review shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant. 

All Fees are doubled for after the fact applications

17



2019 LICENSE FEES

Liquor License 3.2 Beer - On Sale $10.00/non profit only/yr
Intoxicating - On Sale (yearly renewal March 1st) $1,800.00
Intoxicating - Off Sale (yearly renewal March 1st) $100.00
Intoxicating - Sunday Sale (yearly renewal Mar 1st) $200.00
Non Refundable Investigative Fee New License $100.00
Wine and Beer License $200.00
3.2 Beer Annual License $200.00

Amusement Licenses Annual renewal January 1st - $15.00  per location $15.00 per location plus 
$15.00 per machine 

18



2019 UTILITY FEES

Sewer - Monthly Sewer = No Gallon Base $20.04
Sewer = per 1000 gallons $7.62

Stormwater - Monthly  REU
Residential 1 $4.00
Commercial 3.6 $12.00
Schools & Churches 1.8 $4.00
Industrial 3.6 $12.00
Multi Family 2 $8.00
  Storm water Fees based on a $2.00 fee per lot 

Water - Monthly Water = No Gallon Base $12.24
Water = 0 -6,000 gallons $5.41
6,001-15,000 $6.26
15,001-20,000 $7.36
20,001 and above $9.97
MPFA Replacement fund $.10 per 1000
Minnesota Water Testing Fee $0.53
Utility penalty 10.00%

Area Charges - Gross Per Acre Residential Storm Sewer $2,650.00
Commercial Storm Sewer $2,900.00
Industrial Storm Sewer $3,200.00
Water $2,350.00
Sewer $2,350.00

Connection Charges Water (WAC) $4,640.00
Sewer (SAC) $4,640.00

Main Connection Charge Water - Permit Fee $100.00
Sewer - Permit Fee $100.00
Excavation - Permit Fee $200.00
Escrow for Excavation Set By Council

Utility Misc Utility Franchise Application Fee $5,000.00
Utility Franchise Escrow $5,000.00

Hydrant Meter Damage Deposit $800.00

19



1 - 10,000 gallons (minimum) $70.00
10,001- 15,000 $6.26
15,001-20,000 $7.36
20,001 and above $9.97

Water Meters (2)  3/4 "Water Meters Horns, and MXU New Houses $545.00
3/4" Water meter, MXU & connections $350.00
5/8" Water meter alone $140.00
1" Water meter, MXU & connections Cost + 10%
1" Water meter alone Cost + 10%
2" Water meter, MXU & connections Cost + 10%
2" Water meter alone Cost + 10%
MXU $175.00
Curb Box Fee Parts $24.00
Curb Box Repair Fee $20.00
Water Meter other sizes Cost + 10%
Meter wire (per foot) $0.12
5/8" Meter Horn (#2) $80.00
1" Meter Horn (#3) Cost + 10%
2" Meter Horn (#4) Cost + 10%

Watering Violations Watering Ban -  1st Violation $50.00
2nd Violation $50.00 /day fine added to UB 
3rd Violation $100.00/day fine added to UB

4th violation or more increases by $50.00 per time

20



2019 FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES

FIRE DEPARTMENT 3000 gallon tanker - load of water $75.00 per load (within Fire Dist).
2000 gallon tanker - load of water $50.00 per load (within Fire Dist)
3000 gallon tanker - load of water $125.00 per load (outside Fire Dist).
2000 gallon tanker - load of water $85.00 per load (outside Fire Dist)
Fire/Accident Call Not Covered by Contract $450 First Hr. + $350 Each Addnl Hr.
*Structure burning permit $1,000 Recmd Donation
* does not include Asbestos Inspection 
Hazmat Fee $450 plus $10 per hour per Fire Fighter

21



2019 CITY STAFF/CONSULTANT FEES

City Staff Rate $75/Hour*

*There is a minimum charge of 2 hours for staff called out after normal business hours. 

Bolton and Menk - Engineer
Senior Principal $150-$270/Hour
Principal Engineer/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/Landscape Architect $140-$195/hour
Senior Engineer/Surveyor/Planner/GIS/Landscape Architect $110-$175/hour
Project Manager $100-$190/hour
Project Engineer/Surveyor/Planner/Landscape Artchitect $85-$175/hour
Design Engineer/Landscape Designer/Graduate Engineer/Surveyor $80-$185/hour
Specialist $60-$165/hour
Senior Technician $85-$175/hour
Technician $65-$140/hour
Administrative $45-$100/hour
Structural/Electrical/Mechanical/Architect $120-$150/hour
Countryside Kennels Per contract Cost
Municipal Development Group - Planner $90/hour 
Ratwik, Rosak and Maloney - Attorney Cost Incurred 
Other Consultants Cost Incurred 
Police Per contract Cost

22



4th Quarter Report 

City of Mayer 
Mayer, Minnesota 

As of December 31, 2018 

PRELIM
IN

ARY

23



ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Mayer 
Mayer, Minnesota 

Management is responsible for accompanying financial statements of the City of Mayer, Minnesota (the City) which 
comprise the budget to actual statement of revenues and expenditures for the General and enterprise funds as of  
December 31, 2018 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We 
have performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the 
financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the 
information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of 
assurance on these financial statements. 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures and the statement of cash flows required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If the omitted disclosures and the statement of 
cash flows were included in the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the City’s financial 
position, results of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, the financial statements are not designed for those who are 
not informed about such matters. 

Sincerely, 

AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC 

PRELIM
IN

ARY

24



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Mayer 
Mayer, Minnesota 

Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council: 

We have reconciled all bank accounts through December 31, 2018 and reviewed activity in all funds. The following is a 
summary of our observations. All information presented is unaudited. 

Cash and Investments 

The City’s cash and investment balances are as follows: 

Increase/
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 (Decrease)

Checking and Savings 1,523,316$      2,348,525$      (825,209)$        
Investments (at Market Value) 4,507,539        3,206,311        1,301,228        

Total Cash and Investments 6,030,855$      5,554,836$      476,019$         

Increase/
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 (Decrease)

Checking and Savings 1,523,316$      2,348,525$      (825,209)$        
Money Market 641,471           133,606           507,865           
Negotiable CD's 3,866,068        3,072,705        793,363           
Municipal Bond - - - 
Government Agency Securities - - - 

Total Investments 6,030,855$      5,554,836$      476,019$         

Investment Type 

PRELIM
IN

ARY

25



General Fund

YTD YTD Percent of YTD YTD Percent of
Budget Actual YTD Budget Budget Actual YTD Budget

Receipts Disbursements
Taxes 494,778$       486,523$       98                 %       General Government 37,900$        40,955$        108.1           %  
Special Assessments -                    194               -                    N/A City Administrator 104,378        119,966        114.9            
Licenses and Permits 94,710          192,258        203.0                Mayor 18,371          14,632          79.6              
Intergovernmental 341,536        357,828        104.8                City Clerk 21,497          22,576          105.0            
Charges for Services 90,615          60,336          66.6                    Elections 2,550            2,850            112              N/A
Fines and Forfeitures 1,000            3,131            313.1                Assessor 13,500          13,506          100              N/A
Rent 18,703          13,975          74.7                    Accounting/Auditing 30,000          48,540          161.8            
Contributions and Donations -                    -                    -                    N/A Legal Services 10,000          18,094          180.9            
Interest on Investments 2,500            6,756            270.2                Engineering 15,000          24,768          165.1            
Miscellaneous Revenue 3,000            8,950            298.3                Community Center 53,110          52,091          98.1              

Planning and Zoning 45,000          31,966          71.0              
1,046,842$    1,129,951$    107.9            %     Police 102,100        84,833          83.1              

Fire 214,832        186,728        86.9              
Building Inspection 25,000          63,945          255.8            

Key Street and highways 201,118        210,524        104.7            
 Varies more than 10% than budget positively Maintenance 25,460          17,832          70.0              
 Varies more than 10% than budget negatively Parks 134,488        148,154        110.2            
 Within 10% of budget Compost 5,390            3,920            72.7              

 EDA 8,050            835               10                N/A
 Miscellaneous 2,000            250               12.5              

1,069,744$    1,106,965$    103.5           %  

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

 $1,000,000

January 1 January February March April May June July August September October November December

General Fund Cash Balances 2016 - 2018

2016 2017 2018 50% reserve Prior year average

PRELIM
IN

ARY

26



Current short-term rates being offered by financial institutions are very low as evidenced by the table of U.S. Treasury 
rates below. The U.S. Treasury rates provide a benchmark perspective for rate of return.  

Date 1 mo 3 mo 6 mo 1 yr 2 yr 3 yr 5 yr 7 yr 10 yr
12/31/2010          0.07          0.12          0.19          0.29          0.61          1.02          2.01          2.71          3.30 
12/30/2011          0.01          0.02          0.06          0.12          0.25          0.36          0.83          1.35          1.89 
12/31/2012          0.02          0.05          0.11          0.16          0.25          0.36          0.72          1.18          1.78 
12/31/2013          0.01          0.07          0.10          0.13          0.38          0.78          1.75          2.45          3.04 
12/31/2014          0.03          0.04          0.12          0.25          0.67          1.10          1.65          1.97          2.17 
03/31/2015          0.05          0.03          0.14          0.26          0.56          0.89          1.37          1.65          1.87 
06/30/2015          0.02          0.01          0.11          0.28          0.64          1.01          1.63          2.07          2.35 
09/30/2015              -                -            0.08          0.33          0.64          0.92          1.37          1.75          2.06 
12/31/2015          0.14          0.16          0.49          0.64          1.06          1.31          1.76          2.09          2.27 
03/31/2016          0.18          0.21          0.39          0.59          0.73          0.87          1.21          1.54          1.78 
06/30/2016          0.20          0.26          0.36          0.45          0.58          0.71          1.01          1.29          1.49 
09/30/2016          0.20          0.29          0.45          0.59          0.77          0.88          1.14          1.42          1.60 
12/31/2016          0.44          0.51          0.62          0.85          1.20          1.47          1.93          2.25          2.45 
03/31/2017          0.74          0.76          0.91          1.03          1.24          1.50          1.93          2.22          2.40 
06/30/2017          0.84          1.03          1.14          1.24          1.38          1.55          1.89          2.14          2.31 
09/30/2017          0.96          1.06          1.20          1.31          1.47          1.62          1.92          2.16          2.33 
12/31/2017          1.28          1.39          1.53          1.76          1.89          1.98          2.20          2.33          2.40 
03/31/2018          1.63          1.73          1.93          2.09          2.27          2.39          2.56          2.68          2.74 
06/30/2018          1.77          1.93          2.11          2.33          2.52          2.63          2.73          2.81          2.85 
09/30/2018          2.12          2.19          2.36          2.59          2.81          2.88          2.94          3.01          3.05 
12/31/2018          2.44          2.45          2.56          2.63          2.48          2.46          2.51          2.59          2.69 

Treasury Yields

 
 

Budget Summary 

A more detailed analysis of funds is included as Attachment A. 

Cash Balance Summary 

A detailed view of department totals compared with budget is included as Attachment B. 

Investment Summary 

A detailed summary of current investments is included as Attachment C. 

Enterprise Fund Summary 

A detailed summary of enterprise fund financial results is included as Attachment D. 

Revenue and Expenditures 

A detail of revenues and expenditures is available upon request. 

*   * *   *   * 

This information is unaudited and is intended solely for the information and use of management and City Council and is 
not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter or the attachments, please feel free to 
contact us at your convenience. We wish to thank you for the continued opportunity to be of service and for the courtesy 
and cooperation extended to us by your staff.  

Sincerely, 

AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC 

PRELIM
IN

ARY

27



ATTACHMENT ACity of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures -

Budget and Actual -
General Fund (Unaudited)

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

Actual
Annual Through
Budget 12/31/2018

Revenues
Taxes 494,778$         486,523$         (8,255)$            98.3               %
Special assessments -                      194                  194                  -                   
Licenses and permits 94,710             192,258           97,548             (1) 203.0             
Intergovernmental 341,536           357,828           16,292             104.8             
Charges for services 90,615             60,336             (30,279)            66.6               
Fines and forfeitures 1,000               3,131               2,131               313.1             
Rent 18,703             13,975             (4,728)             74.7               
Contributions and donations -                      -                      -                      -                   
Interest on investments 2,500               6,756               4,256               270.2             
Miscellaneous revenue 3,000               8,950               5,950               298.3             

Total Revenues 1,046,842        1,129,951        83,109             107.9             

Expenditures
General government 37,900             40,955             (3,055)             108.1             
City administrator 104,378           119,966           (15,588)            114.9             
Mayor and council 18,371             14,632             3,739               79.6               
City clerk 21,497             22,576             (1,079)             105.0             
Elections 2,550               2,850               (300)                -                   
Assessor 13,500             13,506             (6)                    100.0             
Accounting/auditing 30,000             48,540             (18,540)            (2) 161.8             
Legal services 10,000             18,094             (8,094)             180.9             
Engineering 15,000             24,768             (9,768)             165.1             
Planning and zoning 53,110             52,091             1,019               98.1               
Community center 45,000             31,966             13,034             71.0               
Police 102,100           84,833             17,267             83.1               
Fire 214,832           186,728           28,104             86.9               
Building inspection 25,000             63,945             (38,945)            (3) 255.8             
Street and highways 201,118           210,524           (9,406)             104.7             
Maintenance 25,460             17,832             7,628               70.0               
Parks 134,488           148,154           (13,666)            110.2             
Compost 5,390               3,920               1,470               72.7               
EDA 8,050               835                  7,215               10.4               
Miscellaneous 2,000               250                  1,750               12.5               

Total Expenditures 1,069,744        1,106,965        (37,221)            103.5             

Excess Revenues
(Expenditures) (22,902)            22,986             45,888             N/A

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 22,900             5,500               17,400             N/A
Operating transfers out -                      9,986               (9,986)             N/A

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 22,900             15,486             7,414               -                   

(2)$                  38,472$           53,302$           N/A %

Explanation of items percentage received/expended less than 80% or greater than 120% and $ variance greater than $15,000.

(1) Building permit revenues are higher than budgeted, due to new developments.

(2) Contracted accounting services that were not originally budgeted.

(3) Higher than expected permits (value) pulled, these are offset with higher than expected Building permit revenues.

Percent

Item

Received or
Expended
Based on

Budget through
12/31/2018(Unfavorable)

Favorable
Variance -

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other UsesPRELIM

IN
ARY

28



ATTACHMENT BCity of Mayer, Minnesota
Unaudited Cash Balances by Fund

December 31, 2017, December 31, 2018

Balance Balance
12/31/2017 12/31/2018

100 General fund 844,904$          920,059$          75,155$           (1)
210 Fire Truck Fund 151,021            152,535            1,514 
212 Fire Dept Grant & Contributions 27,365 13,844 (13,521)            
215 Fire Dept Fema Grant (9,888) - 9,888 
220 Park Improvement 332,126            356,644            24,518 
222 Old Schoolhouse Park 5,445 - (5,445) 
225 EDA 19,730 19,748 18 
325 Hwy 25/2007 St Bond 441,767            368,547            (73,220) (2)
350 2015 Fire Truck Fund 112,099            137,704            25,605 
400 70th Street Improvement 43,010 - (43,010) 
405 Street Improvement Fund 68,489 113,149            44,660 
410 Comm Ctr Capital Outlay Fund 24,195 24,438 243 
435 Capital Projects 826,335            850,874            24,539 
620 Water Fund 1,003,647         1,101,171         97,524 (3)
640 Sewer Fund 1,674,846         1,889,275         214,429 (4)
650 Storm Water Fund 32,905 17,476 (15,429) 
700 Investment Fund - - - 
800 Escrow Fund (43,157)             65,391 108,548 (5)

Total 5,554,836$       6,030,855$       476,019$         

Item
(1) 

(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)

Net change in increased water revenue and decreased expenses.
Net change in increased sewer revenue and decreased expenses.
Received $42,759 escrow payment from Coldwater Crossing, $30,762 escrow payment from Hidden Creek,
and $83,435 in landscape escrows since 1st Qtr.

The decrease is caused by a decrease in special assessment revenue tax levy revenue received as well as an increase in the annual 
bond payment.

Fund

YTD Change 

12/31/2017
From

Explanation of changes with $ variance greater than $50,000.
Various increases in revenue and decreases in expenditures make up the increase in cash.  See the Accountants Compilation 
Report for more detail.

PRELIM
IN

ARY

29



ATTACHMENT BCity of Mayer, Minnesota
Unaudited Cash Balances by Fund (Continued)

September 30, 2017, December 31, 2017, September 30, 2018

General    Capital
Debt Service    Enterprise
Special Revenue    Escrow

Balance increased more than 10% over prior year
Balance decreased more than 10% over prior year
Balance within 10% of prior year

Fund

Key

 $(500,000)

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

General Debt Service Special Revenue Capital Enterprise Escrow

Cash Balance by Fund Compared to Prior Year

12/31/2017 12/31/2017 12/31/2018

PRELIM
IN

ARY

30



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Schedule of Investments

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

ATTACHMENT C

Institution Description Type

Security Bank & Trust Checking
Security Bank & Trust 788491 Savings
Security Bank & Trust 3000708 Money Market
Security Bank & Trust FEMA Grant 766823 Savings
Security Bank & Trust 8725 Brokered CD
Security Bank & Trust 90865 Brokered CD
Security Bank & Trust 143337 Brokered CD
Security Bank & Trust 94601 Brokered CD

First MN Bank 82695 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82711 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82799 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82763 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82764 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82776 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82786 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82807 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82809 Brokered CD
First MN Bank 82825 Brokered CD

Edward Jones Money Market
Edward Jones First National Bank Of North America Brokered CD
Edward Jones BMW Bank of NA Brokered CD
Edward Jones Wells Fargo Bank Brokered CD

Ehlers 941410412 Money Market
Ehlers Ally BK Midvale Utah Brokered CD
Ehlers Bank of the West Brokered CD
Ehlers BMO Harris Brokered CD
Ehlers First Natl Bk PA Greenville Brokered CD
Ehlers BMW Bank of North America Brokered CD
Ehlers Capital One BK USA Brokered CD
Ehlers Chemical BK & TR Midland Michigan Brokered CD
Ehlers Goldman Sacks Bk Brokered CD
Ehlers Metabank Storm Lake Iowa CD Brokered CD
Ehlers Morgan Stanley Bank Brokered CD
Ehlers Sallie Mae Bk Murray Utah Brokered CD
Ehlers Wells Fargo Bank NA Brokered CD
Ehlers Wells Fargo Bank NA Brokered CD
Ehlers United States Treasury Brokered CD

4M Fund Money Market
4M Fund Pacific Western Bank Brokered CD
4M Fund Citi Bank/Onewest Bank Brokered CD
4M Fund Bank of the West Brokered CD
4M Fund Capital One Bank Brokered CD
4M Fund Ally Bank Brokered CD
4M Fund Goldman Sachs Brokered CD

Total Cash and Investments

Unadjusted
Market Value Deposits - Expenditures - Market Value Market Value      Unrealized

1/1/2018 Purchases Sales Transfers Interest 12/31/2018 12/31/2018 gain / loss

1,523,863.05$    3,194,811.61$    (2,836,741.36)$    (350,000.00)$     2,614.01$  1,534,547.31$    1,534,547.31$    -$  
943,442.44         -                      (20.00) (900,000.00)       696.98 44,119.42           44,119.42           - 
96,951.86           - - - 290.35 97,242.21           97,242.21           - 

297.04 - - - 0.21 297.25 297.25 - 
21,554.79           - - - 164.65 21,719.44           21,719.44           - 

212,684.64         - - (215,874.91)       3,190.27 - - - 
28,096.10           - - - 318.13 28,414.23           28,414.23           - 

- - - 215,874.91         8.87 215,883.78         215,883.78         - 
2,826,889.92      3,194,811.61      (2,836,761.36)      (1,250,000.00)    7,283.47 1,942,223.64      1,942,223.64      - 

258,355.17         - (258,355.17) - - - - - 
104,632.70         - (104,880.38) - 247.68 - - - 

- 105,136.93         - - 643.96 105,780.89         105,780.89         - 
204,903.62         - (206,206.29) - 1,302.67 - - - 
211,518.60         - (212,863.32) - 1,344.72 - - - 
104,369.74         - (105,711.04) - 1,005.02 (336.28) - 336.28 

- 259,053.83 - - 3,459.15 262,512.98         262,512.98         - 
- 206,871.57 - - 1,162.79 208,034.36         208,034.36         - 
- 213,550.08 - - 1,307.98 214,858.06         214,858.06         - 
- 105,711.04 - - - 105,711.04         105,711.04         - 

883,779.83         890,323.45         (888,016.20)         - 10,473.97 896,561.05         896,897.33         336.28 

2,209.72             - 460,880.23 (463,090.96)       1.01 - - - 
208,997.37         - (208,998.32) - - (0.95) - 0.95 
206,160.93         - (206,135.17) - - 25.76 - (25.76) 
45,733.56           - (45,747.06) (52.74) 52.74 (13.50) - 13.50 

463,101.58         - (0.32) (463,143.70)       53.75 11.31 - (11.31) 

- (2,391,940.92) 663,432.15          1,732,513.91      (3,153.02) 852.12 852.12 0.00 
- 248,000.00 - (1,475.77) 1,475.77 248,000.00         245,800.24         (2,199.76)            
- 244,990.50 - - - 244,990.50         244,853.00         (137.50) 
- 244,990.50 - - - 244,990.50         244,853.00         (137.50) 
- 208,997.91 (209,000.00)         (658.01) 658.01 (2.09) - 2.09 
- 205,878.46 (206,000.00)         (1,540.77)           1,540.77 (121.54) - 121.54 
- 248,000.00 - (1,475.77) 1,475.77 248,000.00         245,800.24         (2,199.76) 
- 248,990.10 (249,000.00)         (3,259.17) 3,259.17 (9.90) - 9.90 
- 248,000.00 - (1,352.79) 1,352.79 248,000.00         245,800.24         (2,199.76) 
- 233,000.00 - - - 233,000.00         232,704.09         (295.91) 
- 246,953.25 - (2,939.64) 2,939.64 246,953.25         245,947.78         (1,005.47)            
- 246,953.25 - (2,992.38) 2,992.38 246,953.25         245,947.78         (1,005.47)            
- 45,502.28 - (879.89) 879.89 45,502.28           45,711.58           209.30 
- 202,984.55 - (3,392.60) 3,392.60 202,984.55         202,287.47         (697.08) 
- 262,700.12 - - - 262,700.12         263,347.98         647.86 

- 744,000.00 (567.85) 1,712,547.12      16,813.77 2,472,793.04      2,463,905.52      (8,887.52)            

34,443.94           - 489,290.00 15,029.08          4,613.22 543,376.24         543,376.24         - 
244,790.00         - (244,790.00) (5,205.64)           5,205.64 - - - 
244,500.00         - (244,500.00) (5,447.77)           5,447.77 - - - 
240,100.00         - - - - 240,100.00         240,100.00         - 
244,793.36         - (248,000.00) (1,500.23)           1,500.23 (3,206.64)            - 3,206.64 
244,793.36         - (248,000.00) (1,500.23)           1,500.23 (3,206.64)            - 3,206.64 
244,790.88         - (248,000.00) (1,375.21)           1,375.21 (3,209.12)            - 3,209.12 

1,498,211.54      - (744,000.00) (0.00) 19,642.30 773,853.84         783,476.24         9,622.40             

4,173,771.33$    4,829,135.06$    (4,469,345.73)$    (596.58)$            54,267.26$  6,085,442.88$    6,086,502.73$    1,059.85$           PRELIM
IN

ARY

31



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Investments

For the Month Ending June 30, 2018

ATTACHMENT C

Unadjusted
Market Value Market Value Variance

Maturity 12/31/2018 12/31/2018 12/31/2018
Current 2,954,353.65$  2,957,835.27$  3,481.62$      
< 1 year 2,529,868.26    2,528,939.74    (928.52)          
1-2 years 601,220.97       599,727.72       (1,493.25)       
2-3 years -                        -                       -                     
3-4 years -                        -                       -                     
5+ years -                        -                       -                     

6,085,442.88$  6,086,502.73$  1,059.85$      
-                    -$                 

 Weighted Average Rate of Return 0.86% 12/31/2018
Average Maturity (Years) 0.10                  12/31/2018

Market Value 
Investment Type 12/31/2018
Money Market 641,470.57$     
Brokered CD 3,866,068.18    
Savings 44,416.67         
Government Securities -                   
Municipal Securities -                   
Checking 1,534,547.31    

6,086,502.73$  

Operating Account
O/S Deposits -$                     
O/S Checks (55,648.00)       

Reconciled Balance 6,030,854.73$  

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

Current < 1 year 1-2
years

2-3
years

3-4
years

 5+
years

Maturities

Market Value  Market Value

11%

63%

1%
0%

0%

25%

Money Market

Brokered CD

Savings

Checking

PRELIM
IN

ARY

32



ATTACHMENT D

Received or
Expended

Actual Actual Variance - Based on
Annual Thru Thru Favorable Actual Thru
Budget 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Charges for services -$        369,934$   381,209$         11,275$           97.0            %
Connection fees - 162,000 157,500       (4,500)  102.9      
Developer area fee - 51,207 - (51,207) (1) N/A
Special assessment - 3,816 2,761    (1,055) 138.2      
Interest earnings - 6,314 10,260  3,946    N/A
Miscellaneous - 76,277 59,009  (17,268)        (2) 129.3      

Total Revenues - 669,548 610,739           (58,809)            -     

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 34,836  51,739  52,802  (1,063)  98.0            
Supplies 8,600    4,844    4,492    352       107.8      
Other services and charges 17,860  12,080  18,711  (6,631)   64.6        
Repair and maintenance 13,750  22,766  26,508  (3,742)  85.9        
Utilities 24,225  25,062  24,489  573       102.3      
Capital outlay 47,500  29,026  55,078  (26,052)        (3) 52.7        
Depreciation - 198,845 196,640       2,205    -     
Insurance 4,050    3,817 3,106    711       122.9      
Bond principal 258,250       - -    -    (4) N/A
Bond interest 70,182  99,839 38,551  61,288  (5) 259.0      

Total Expenses 479,253       448,018           420,377           27,641  106.6      

Transfers In -    -    -    -    N/A
Transfers Out -    -    -    -    N/A

Excess Revenues
Over (Under) Expenses (479,253)$        221,531$         190,362$         (31,169)$          (251.8)     %

Item Explanation of items percentage received/expended less than 80% or greater than 120% and $ variance greater than $10,000.

(1) Received $51,207 in developer area fees in 2017.  No developer area fees have been collected in 2018

(2)

(3) Purchased water meters, well repair expenses (Pump and Motor for Well #2)

(4) Principal payments recorded directly to liability account.

(5) Interest payment allocation correction in 4th Quarter 2017.

$14,801 Lift Station claim was paid out in March 2017, $10,000 antenna escrow paid in March 2017.  There have been 
no insurance claims to date in 2018, no additional antenna escrows or rent have been collected in 2018.

WATER FUND

12/31/2018

City of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues and Expenses -

Budget and Actual -
Water Fund (Unaudited)

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

Percent

PRELIM
IN

ARY

33



ATTACHMENT DCity of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues and Expenses -

Budget and Actual -
Water Fund (Unaudited) (Continued)

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

WATER FUND

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

 $450,000

Water Sales Comparison 2016 - 2018

2016 2017 2018

PRELIM
IN

ARY

34



ATTACHMENT D

Received or
Expended

Actual Actual Based on
Annual Thru Thru Actual Thru
Budget 12/31/2017 12/31/2018

Revenues
Taxes -$                    273,000$         282,000$         9,000$             96.8            %
Capital grants & contributions -                      3,630               3,736               106                  97.2            
Charges for services -                      421,759           460,282           38,523             91.6            
Connection fee -                      162,000           157,500           (4,500)             102.9          
Developer area fee -                      51,206             -                      (51,206)            (1) N/A
Special assessments -                      4,096               2,761               (1,335)             148.4          
Interest income -                      9,513               18,676             9,163               50.9            
Miscellaneous -                      13                    7,043               7,030               N/A

Total Revenues -                      925,217           931,998           6,781               99.3            

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 34,836             51,739             50,737             1,002               102.0          
Supplies 55,055             55,463             63,891             (8,428)             86.8            
Other services and charges 55,595             40,208             63,099             (22,891)            (2) 63.7            
Repair and maintenance 111,150           47,718             45,246             2,472               105.5          
Utilities 46,430             40,388             36,681             3,707               110.1          
Depreciation -                      284,269           288,816           (4,547)             N/A
Capital outlay 101,805           26,588             32,715             (6,127)             81.3            
Insurance 13,200             10,533             11,824             (1,291)             89.1            
Bond principal 314,750           -                      -                      -                      (3) N/A
Bond interest 102,385           140,917           55,960             84,957             (4) 251.8          

Total Expenses 835,206           697,824           648,969           48,855             107.5          

Transfers In -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A
Transfers Out -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A

Excess Revenues
Over (Under) Expenses (835,206)$        227,393$         283,029$         55,636$           80.3            %

Item Explanation of items percentage received/expended less than 80% or greater than 120% and $ variance greater than $10,000.
(1) Received $51,207 in developer area fees in 2017.  No developer area fees have been collected in 2018.
(2) Increase in Engineering Fees in 2018.
(3)
(4) Increase in interest expense due to 2017A Bond.

City of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues and Expenses -

Budget and Actual -
Sewer Fund (Unaudited)

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

Principal payments recorded directly to liability account.

SEWER FUND
Percent

12/31/2018(Unfavorable)
Favorable
Variance -

PRELIM
IN

ARY

35



ATTACHMENT DCity of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues and Expenses -

Budget and Actual -
Sewer Fund (Unaudited)

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

SEWER FUND

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

 $450,000

 $500,000
Sewer Sales Comparison 2016 - 2018

2016 2017 2018

PRELIM
IN

ARY

36



ATTACHMENT D

Received or
Expended

Actual Actual Variance - Based on
Annual Thru Thru Favorable Actual Thru
Budget 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Charges for services -$                    78,146$           21,744$           (56,402)$          (1) 359.4          %
Interest earnings -                      268                  241                  (27)                  N/A
Intergovernmental -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A
Special assessments -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A
Miscellaneous -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A

Total Revenues -                      78,414             21,985             (56,429)            356.7          

Expenses
Other services and charges -                      6,680               14,671             (7,991)             45.5            
Capital outlay -                      7,925               -                      7,925               N/A
Depreciation -                      14,236             14,236             -                      N/A

Total Expenses -                      28,841             28,907             (66)                  99.8            

Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A
Transfers out -                      -                      -                      -                      N/A

Excess Revenues
Over (Under) Expenses -$                    49,573$           (6,922)$            (56,363)$          (716.2)         %

Item Explanation of items percentage received/expended less than 80% or greater than 120% and $ variance greater than $10,000.

(1) Hidden Creek paid $29,839 in developer fees in March 2017, Coldwater Crossing paid $27,904.50 in storm water utility fees in May 2017.  
No developer fees have been collected in 2018.

STORM SEWER FUND
Percent

12/31/2018

City of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues and Expenses -

Budget and Actual -
Storm Sewer Fund (Unaudited)

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2018

 $-

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

Storm Sewer Sales Comparison 2016 - 2018

2016 2017 2018PRELIM
IN

ARY

37



Request for Council Action Memorandum 
 
Item:  Closing and Transferring Funds  
Meeting Date:  March 11, 2019   
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Recommendations/Council Action/Motion Requested: 
To review closing and transferring funds.  
 
Details: 
During the 2018 Audit, it was determined that some funds had the potential to be closed due to lack of 
use and need.  
 
Those funds that have balances in them would be transferred to other accounts for future use. There 
was one account that had a negative balance that would be zeroed out with the use of funds from the 
General Fund.  
 
The following transfers are proposed to close the following accounts: 
 
Fund 400 (70th Street Improvement Fund) –  

The balance of $43,867.86 would be transferred to Fund 405, the Street Improvement Fund. It 
would then be closed.  

 
Fund 215 (Fire Department FEMA Fund) –  

The negative balance of $9,985.66 would be paid off by transferring that amount from the Fund 
100, General Fund. It would then be closed.  

 
Fund 222 (Old School House Park) –  

The balance of $5,486.33 would be transferred to Fund 100, General Fund. It would then be 
closed.  

 
FEMA –  
In 2014, it looks as though the City applied for a grant for FEMA Funds to be able to purchase equipment 
for the Fire Department.  
 
In March, 2015 it looks as though the City applied for a grant for FEMA funds to be able to raise several 
manholes that attributed to the lift station previously flooding. 

38



Currently, there is a negative balance of $9,985.66 in that FEMA Account that has been carried over for 
the past 3 years.  
 
While, I am not 100% certain, as I reviewed the records of FEMA money going in and out, it looks as 
though some of the items were miscoded and that is why the account is off.  
  
Additional Info –  
According to the City auditors, it looks as though the 215 (FEMA) fund had a positive balance of $1,053 
in December, 2014. During 2015, there was $216,590 in intergovernmental revenue and $3 in interest in 
the account. In 2015, there was $227,365 in capital outlay expenditures for public safety, causing a 
deficiency of $10,772. The end result, bringing the fund balance for December 2015 to $9,719.  
 
Attachments:  
Resolution 2-25-19-11 

39



RESOLUTION NO. 3-11-19-14 
CITY OF MAYER 

 
RESOLUTION CLOSING FUND 400 AND TRANSFERRING FUND BALANCE TO 

GENERAL FUND 405 STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND. 
CLOSING FUND 222 AND TRANSFERRING FUND BALANCE TO GENERAL FUND 100. 

CLOSING FUND 215 AND PAYING THE DEFICIT FROM THE GENERAL FUND 100.  
 
It is hereby resolved by the City of Mayer, Minnesota that:  
 
WHEREAS, the City held an account, Fund 400, for the 70th Street Improvement Fund;  and  
 
WHEREAS, there is a balance of $43,867.86; and 
 
THEREFORE, Staff would recommend transferring the balance of the fund 400 to fund 405 (Street 
Improvement Fund) in the amount of $43,967.86 and closing the fund.  
 
WHEREAS, the City held an account, Fund 215, for a Fire Department FEMA Grant, and  
 
WHEREAS, the balance is currently -$9,985.66; and  
 
THEREFORE, Staff would recommend closing the account by transferring funds from the General 
Fund 100 in the amount of $9,985.66 to close the account.  
 
WHEREAS, the City held an account, Fund 222, for Old School House Park, and 
 
WHEREAS, the balance is currently $5,486.33; and  
 
THEREFORE, Staff would recommend transferring the balance of fund 222 to fund 100 (General 
Fund) in the amount of $5,486.33 and closing the account.  
  
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayer City Council does hereby approve these transfers listed above.  
 
Adopted this 11th day of March, 2019.  
 
 
  _______________________________________ 
  Mike Dodge, Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Margaret McCallum, City Administrator  

40



Request for Council Action Memorandum 
 
Item:  City Hall Generator – Carverlink  
Meeting Date: March 11, 2019  
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Recommendations/Council Action/Motion Requested: 
A review and discuss a generator at City Hall provided by Carverlink.   
 
Details: 
Carverlink is looking at the installation of a generator by Midwest Generator that would provide 
backup to their hardware if necessary.  
 
Their contribution to the generator is $13,800. 
 
They offered to install a larger generator that would be large enough to power the entire City 
Hall in the case of an emergency. The cost of the larger generator is $23,800. They would cover 
the first $13,800 and the City would pick up the remaining $10,000.  
 
Carverlink has done this in other communities who were interested as well.  
 
The benefits would be that the entire City Hall would be on a backup generator in the case of 
an emergency. City Hall is a location identified as an emergency shelter in the case of an 
emergency.  
 
The generator gets warrantied to the City and belongs to the City. We would be responsible for 
future maintenance.  
 
The generator would have a 5 year warranty and 2 years of included maintenance. Randy with 
Carverlink is working on getting it to a 7 year warranty with 3 years maintenance. Going with 
Midwest Generator to do yearly maintenance would be around $500 per year. Otherwise, 
public works could purchase the kit for about $175 and do it themselves.  
 
Attachments:  
Generator Specifications – RG038 – 38 kW 60Hz Unit  

41



1 of 11

¡  INNOVATIVE DESIGN & PROTOTYPE TESTING are key components of 
GENERAC’S success in “IMPROVING POWER BY DESIGN.”  But it 
doesn’t stop there.  Total commitment to component testing, reliability 
testing, environmental testing, destruction and life testing,  plus testing 
to applicable CSA, NEMA, EGSA, and other standards, allows you to 
choose GENERAC POWER SYSTEMS with the confidence that these 
systems will provide superior performance.

¡ TEST CRITERIA:
 a PROTOTYPE TESTED a NEMA MG1-22 EVALUATION
 a SYSTEM TORSIONAL TESTED a MOTOR STARTING ABILITY

¡  SOLID-STATE, FREQUENCY COMPENSATED VOLTAGE REGULATION.  
This state-of-the-art power maximizing regulation system is standard on 
all Generac models.  It provides optimized FAST RESPONSE to changing 
load conditions and MAXIMUM MOTOR STARTING CAPABILITY by 
electronically torque-matching the surge loads to the engine.  Digital 
voltage regulation at ±1%.

¡  SINGLE SOURCE SERVICE RESPONSE from Generac’s extensive dealer 
network provides parts and service know-how for the entire unit, from the 
engine to the smallest electronic component.

¡  GENERAC TRANSFER SWITCHES.   Long life and reliability are  
synonymous with GENERAC POWER SYSTEMS.  One reason for this  
confidence is that the GENERAC product line includes its own transfer  
systems and controls for total system compatibility. 

INCLUDES:

•  Two-Line LCD Multilingual Digital 
Evolution™ Controller (English/Spanish/
French/Portuguese) with external viewing 
window for easy indication of generator 
status and breaker position.

• True Power™ Electrical Technology

• Isochronous Electronic Governor

• Sound Attenuated Enclosure

• Closed Coolant Recovery System

• Smart Battery Charger

• UV/Ozone Resistant Hoses

• ±1% Voltage Regulation

• Natural Gas or LP Operation

• 5 Year Limited Warranty

• UL 2200 Listed

•  Capability to be installed within 18"  
(457) mm of a building*

*Only if located away from doors, windows, and fresh air 
intakes, and unless otherwise directed by local codes.

Standby Power Rating

Model RG022 (Aluminum - Bisque) - 22 kW 60 Hz
Model RG027 (Aluminum - Bisque) - 27 kW 60 Hz
Model RG032 (Aluminum - Bisque) - 32 kW 60 Hz
Model RG038 (Aluminum - Bisque) - 38 kW 60 Hz
Model RG048 (Aluminum - Bisque) - 48 kW 60 Hz

FEATURES

ISO
9001:
2008

PROTECTOR® QS SERIES
Standby Generators

Liquid-Cooled Gaseous Engine

P
ro

te
ct

or
®

  Q
S

 S
er

ie
s

Protector® QS 
Series

Meets EPA Emission Regulations
22 & 27 kW are CA/MA emissions compliant

32 & 38 kW not for sale in CA / MA

®

*Assembled in the USA using 
domestic and foreign parts

42

Midwest Electric
Highlight



2 of 11

22 • 27 • 32 • 38 • 48 kW application & engineering data

GENERATOR SPECIFICATIONS
Type Synchronous

Rotor Insulation Class
H (22 & 27 kW) or 

F (32, 38 & 48 kW)

Stator Insulation Class H

Telephone Interference Factor (TIF) <50

Alternator Output Leads 1-Phase 4 wire

Alternator Output Leads 3-Phase 6 wire

Bearings Sealed Ball

Coupling Flexible Disc

Excitation System Direct

VOLTAGE REGULATION
Type Electronic

Sensing Single Phase

Regulation ± 1%

GOVERNOR SPECIFICATIONS
Type Electronic

Frequency Regulation Isochronous

Steady State Regulation ± 0.25%

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
Battery Charge Alternator 12 Volt 30 Amp

Static Battery Charger 2.5 Amp

Recommended Battery (battery not included)
Group 26 (22, 27, 32 & 38 kW) 

or Group 24F (48 kW), 525CCA

System Voltage 12 Volts

GENERATOR FEATURES
Revolving field heavy duty generator
Directly connected to the engine
Operating temperature rise 120 °C above a 40 °C ambient
Class H insulation is NEMA rated
Class F insulation is NEMA rated
All models fully prototyped tested

ENCLOSURE FEATURES

�Aluminum weather 
protective enclosure

Ensures protection against mother nature.  
Electrostatically applied textured epoxy paint for added 
durability.

�Enclosed critical grade 
muffler

Quiet, critical grade muffler is mounted inside the unit 
to prevent injuries.

�Small, compact, attractive Makes for an easy, eye appealing installation.

SAE Sound attenuated enclosure ensures quiet operation.

ENGINE SPECIFICATIONS: 22, 27, 32 & 38 kW
Make Generac

Model In-line

Cylinders 4

Displacement (Liters) 2.4

Bore (in/mm) 3.41/86.5

Stroke (in/mm) 3.94/100

Compression Ratio 9.5:1

Intake Air System

Naturally Aspirated (22 & 27 kW) or 

Turbocharged/Aftercooled  

(32 & 38 kW)

Lifter Type Hydraulic

ENGINE SPECIFICATIONS: 48 kW
Make Generac

Model V-Type

Cylinders 8

Displacement (Liters) 5.4

Bore (in/mm) 3.55/90.2

Stroke (in/mm) 4.17/105.9

Compression Ratio 9:1

Intake Air System Naturally Aspirated

Lifter Type Hydraulic

ENGINE LUBRICATION SYSTEM
Oil Pump Type Gear

Oil Filter Type Full flow spin-on cartridge

Crankcase Capacity (qt/l)
4/3.8 (22, 27, 32 & 38 kW) or  

6/5.7 (48 kW)

ENGINE COOLING SYSTEM
Type Closed

Water Pump Belt driven

Fan Speed (rpm)

1980 - 22 & 27 kW

1500 - 32 & 38 kW

1954 - 48 kW

Fan Diameter (in/mm)
18.1/459.7 (22 & 27 kW) or 

22/558.8 (32, 38 & 48 kW)

Fan Mode
Pusher (22 & 27 kW) or  

Puller (32, 38 & 48 kW)

FUEL SYSTEM
Fuel Type Natural gas, propane vapor

Carburetor Down Draft

Secondary Fuel Regulator Standard

Fuel Shut Off Solenoid Standard

Operating Fuel Pressure 5-14" water column/9-26 mm HG

LP Fuel Pressure 11 - 14" Water Column

NG Fuel Pressure 5 - 14" Water Column(All ratings in accordance with BS5514, ISO3046, ISO8528, SAE J1349 and DIN6271)

P
ro

te
ct

or
®

  Q
S

 S
er

ie
s ®

43

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight



3 of 11

22 • 27 • 32 • 38 • 48 kW operating data

GENERATOR OUTPUT VOLTAGE/kW - 60 Hz
kW LPG Amp LPG kW Nat. Gas Amp Nat. Gas CB Size (Both)

RG022

120/240 V, 1Ø, 1.0 pf 22 92 22 92 100

120/208 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 22 76 22 76 80

120/240 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 22 66 22 66 80

RG027

120/240 V, 1Ø, 1.0 pf 27 113 25 104 125

120/208 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 27 94 25 87 100

120/240 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 27 81 25 75 90

RG032

120/240 V, 1Ø, 1.0 pf 32 133 32 133 150

120/208 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 32 111 32 111 125

120/240 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 32 96 32 96 100

277/480 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 32 48 32 48 60

RG038

120/240 V, 1Ø, 1.0 pf 38 158 38 158 175

120/208 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 38 132 38 132 150

120/240 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 38 114 38 114 125

277/480 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 38 57 38 57 60

RG048

120/240 V, 1Ø, 1.0 pf 48 200 48 200 200

120/208 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 48 167 48 167 175

120/240 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 48 144 48 144 150

277/480 V, 3Ø, 0.8 pf 48 72 48 72 80

SURGE CAPACITY IN AMPS
Voltage Dip @ < .4 pf

15% 30%

RG022

120/240 V, 1Ø 55 135

120/208 V, 3Ø 40 92

120/240 V, 3Ø 35 80

RG027

120/240 V, 1Ø 62 170

120/208 V, 3Ø 70 120

120/240 V, 3Ø 61 103

RG032

120/240 V, 1Ø 75 180

120/208 V, 3Ø 87 210

120/240 V, 3Ø 75 182

277/480 V, 3Ø 36 87

RG038

120/240 V, 1Ø 75 180

120/208 V, 3Ø 87 210

120/240 V, 3Ø 75 182

277/480 V, 3Ø 36 87

RG048

120/240 V, 1Ø 85 195

120/208 V, 3Ø 90 218

120/240 V, 3Ø 78 189

277/480 V, 3Ø 36 87

P
ro

te
ct

or
®

  Q
S

 S
er

ie
s

STANDBY RATING: Standby ratings apply to installations served by a reliable utility source. The standby rating is applicable to varying loads for the duration of a power outage.  There 
is no overload capability for this rating. Ratings are in accordance with ISO-3046-1. Design and specifications are subject to change without notice.

Note: Fuel pipe must be sized for full load. 

For Btu content, multiply ft³/hr x 2520 (LP) or ft³/hr x 1000 (NG)

For megajoule content, multiply m³/hr x 93.15 (LP) or m³/hr x 37.26 (NG)

Refer to "Emissions Data Sheets" for maximum fuel flow for EPA and 
SCAQMD permitting purposes.

®

ENGINE FUEL CONSUMPTION
Natural Gas Propane

(ft³/hr) (m³/hr) (gal/hr) (l/hr) (ft³/hr)

RG022

Exercise cycle 42 1.2 0.44 1.7 16

25% of rated load 100 2.8 1.1 4.2 40

50% of rated load 190 5.4 2.1 7.8 75

75% of rated load 255 7.2 2.8 10.5 101  

100% of rated load 316 9 3.4 13 125

RG027

Exercise cycle 42 1.2 0.44 1.7 16

25% of rated load 108 3.1 1.2 4.5 43

50% of rated load 197 5.6 2.1 8.1 78

75% of rated load 287 8.2 3.1 11.8 114

100% of rated load 359 10.2 3.9 14.8 143

RG032

Exercise cycle 79 2.2 0.8 3.2 30

25% of rated load 144 4.1 1.7 6.3 60

50% of rated load 226 6.4 2.7 10.3 97

75% of rated load 298 6.4 3.7 13.9 132

100% of rated load 375 10.6 4.6 17.5 166

RG038

Exercise cycle 83 2.3 0.9 3.2 31

25% of rated load 162 4.6 1.7 6.6 62

50% of rated load 255 7.2 2.9 10.8 103

75% of rated load 345 9.8 4 15 142

100% of rated load 437 12.4 5.2 19 185

RG048

Exercise cycle 95 2.7 1 3.9 38

25% of rated load 204 5.8 2.16 8.5 82

50% of rated load 392 11.1 4.14 15.7 151

75% of rated load 547 15.5 5.8 22.8 220

100% of rated load 756 21.5 7.96 31.3 302

44

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight

Midwest Electric
Highlight



4 of 11

22 • 27 • 32 • 38 • 48 kW operating data

P
ro

te
ct

or
®

  Q
S

 S
er

ie
s

POWER ADJUSTMENT FOR AMBIENT CONDITIONS

Temperature Deration ...........................................................................................................3% for every 10 °C above 25 °C or 1.65% for every 10 °F above 77 °F
Altitude Deration (22, 27 & 48 kW) .....................................................................................1% for every 100 m above 183 m or 3% for every 1000 ft above 600 ft
Altitude Deration (32 & 38 kW)  ....................................................................................... 1% for every 100 m above 915 m or 3% for every 1000 ft above 3000 ft

CONTROLLER FEATURES

Two-Line Plain Text LCD Display ....................................................................................................................................Simple user interface for ease of operation.
Mode Switch:  Auto  ..............................................................................................................................................Automatic Start on Utility failure. 7 day exerciser

 Off ...........................................................................................................................Stops unit. Power is removed. Control and charger still operate.
 Manual ......................................................................................... Start with starter control, unit stays on. If utility fails, transfer to load takes place.

Programmable start delay between 10-30 seconds ................................................................................................................................................. 10 sec standard
Engine Start Sequence ..................................................................................................................... Cyclic cranking: 16 sec on, 7 rest (90 sec maximum duration)
Engine Warm-up ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 sec
Engine Cool-Down ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................1 min
Starter Lock-out ................................................................................................................................Starter cannot re-engage until 5 sec after engine has stopped.
Smart Battery Charger ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ Standard
Automatic Voltage Regulation with Over and Under Voltage Protection ................................................................................................................................ Standard
Automatic Low Oil Pressure Shutdown ............................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Overspeed Shutdown .............................................................................................................................................................................................. Standard, 72 Hz
High Temperature Shutdown ............................................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Overcrank Protection .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Safety Fused ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Failure to Transfer Protection .............................................................................................................................................................................................. Standard
Low Battery Protection ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ Standard
50 Event Run Log ............................................................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Future Set Capable Exerciser .............................................................................................................................................................................................. Standard
Incorrect Wiring Protection ................................................................................................................................................................................................. Standard
Internal Fault Protection ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Common External Fault Capability ...................................................................................................................................................................................... Standard
Governor Failure Protection ................................................................................................................................................................................................ Standard

ENGINE COOLING

22 kW 27 kW 32 & 38 kW 48 kW

Air flow (inlet air including alternator and combustion air in cfm/cmm) 2400/68 2400/68 2200/62.3 4350/123.2

System coolant capacity (gal/liters) 2.5/9.5 2.5/9.5 2.5/9.5 3/11.4

Heat rejection to coolant (BTU per hr/MJ per hr) 99,000/104.5 105,000/110.8 145,000/153 186,000/196.2

Maximum operation air temperature on radiator (°C/°F) 60/150

Maximum ambient temperature (°C/°F) 50/140

COMBUSTION REQUIREMENTS

Flow at rated power (cfm/cmm) 68/1.9 68/1.9 106/3 163/4.6

SOUND EMISSIONS

Sound output in dB(A) at 23 ft (7 m) with generator in exercise mode* 61 61 58 63

Sound output in dB(A) at 23 ft (7 m) with generator operating at normal load* 70 70 64 68

*Sound levels are taken from the front of the generator. Sound levels taken from other sides of the generator may be higher depending on installation parameters.

EXHAUST

Exhaust flow at rated output (cfm/cmm) 165/4.7 180/5.1 300/8.5 414/11.7

Exhaust temperature at muffler outlet (°C/°F) 482/900 538/1000 579/1075 552/1025

ENGINE PARAMETERS

Rated Synchronous rpm 1800

®

45

Midwest Electric
Highlight



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 1 

 
 

Mayer City Council 
Staff Report 

      March 6, 2019 
Agave Mexican Restaurant Site Plan Review  

 
APPLICATION DATA 
 
Meeting Date:    March 11, 2019 
 
Applicant/Owner: Eliceo Salomon-Vasquez 
 
Address &  
PID Number: 421 Ash Avenue North  - 50.22601.30 
  
Legal Description: Lot 5 & 6, Block 3, Haueter's 2nd Addition to Mayer, according to the record plat 

thereof, Carver County, Minnesota. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
To approve or deny a site plan review for a new restaurant to be know as Agave Mexican Restaurant at 
421 Ash Avenue. 
 
BACKGROUND DATA  
   
Future Land Use  
Classification: The property is designated Existing MUSA Infill/Redevelopment on the future land use 

map and the proposed restaurant is consistent with this designation and zoning. 
 
Zoning  
Classification: The property is zoned C-2 Central Business District and a restaurant is a permitted use 

in this district. The property consists of an existing structure and no new additions or 
structures are being proposed but in the C-2 district there are no setbacks or lot 
coverage requirements so that will not be a factor.  

 
Comments  
Received:   No comments from the public have been received as of the date of the this memo. 
 
Background:   The applicant has plans to open a restaurant in the structure on the property. 

Previously the property was used as a restaurant, but that use has not been open for 
quite a few years.  The previous use was permitted but the parking situation was non-
conforming. Under section 152.020 Nonconforming Uses and Structures it states that: 

 
"Any nonconformity, including the lawful use or occupation of land or premises existing 
on November 14, 2005 may be continued, including through repair, replacement, 
restoration, maintenance, or improvement, but not including expansion, unless: 
      (1)   The nonconformity or occupancy is discontinued for a period of more than one 
year; or     
      (2)   Any nonconforming use is destroyed by fire or other peril to the extent of the 
greater than 50% of its market value and no building permit has been applied for within 
180 days of when the property is damaged. The City may impose reasonable 
conditions upon a building permit in order to mitigate any newly created impact on 
adjacent property." 

 
In this case the use was discontinued for a period of more than one year so the 
applicant is required to bring the property into conformity and in this case that means 

46



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 2 

the off-street parking situation has to be reviewed and addressed. As part of the site 
plan review other items could be looked at like the exterior building materials and 
landscaping, but since this is an existing building those items are not being addressed 
with this site plan review at this time. 

 
 The site plan review requirements are listed under Section 152.031 of the zoning 

ordinance.  Site plan review requires the following submittal requirements. 
 
 (1)  Boundary survey of parcel including identification of all monuments. 
 (2)  Scaled location of all buildings, structures, driveways, sidewalks, trails, parking 

 stalls, and curbing. 
 (3)  Scaled identification of all setback dimensions from property lines. 
 (4)  Scaled locations of all existing and proposed utilities and easements. 
 (5)  Scaled depictions of floor plans for each story. 
 (6)  Scaled depictions of each building elevation and descriptions of exterior building 

 materials and color schemes. 
 (7)  Scaled site grading plans, including erosion and sedimentation control 

 mechanisms and procedures. 
 (8)  Scaled delineations of any shoreland, floodplain, or wetland areas on the site. 
 (9)  Identification of any floodplain or wetland encroachments and detailed mitigation 

 plans. 
 (10) Detailed landscape plans, illustrating size, types, and locations of all materials, a 

 description of site seeding or sodding, a description of the timetable for site 
 landscaping, and the identification of any irrigation systems. 

 (11)  Detailed descriptions of any site fencing, including type, location and height. 
 (12)  All plans shall be dated and shall bear the name(s) of the preparer(s), including 

 professional registrations or certifications when appropriate or required. 
 
As part of this application a survey of the property was submitted showing the proposed 
off-street parking layout and the location of the structure.  
 
Properties adjacent to the site consist of the following. To the north across 5th Street 
NW is the old creamery property, which is zoned C-2 Central Business District; to the 
west across the alley is single family detached dwellings zoned R-2 Medium Density 
Residential; to the south is a single family detached dwelling zoned C-2 Central 
Business District and to the east across State Highway 25 are single family detached 
dwelling units zoned R-1 Low Density Residential. 
 
At the March 5, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission voted 
5-0 to recommend approval of the site plan review. 

 
Off-Street  
Parking: The applicant has submitted a certificate of survey showing the site plan which consists 

of the existing structure and the proposed off-street parking. Since this property abuts 
State Highway 25 (Ash Avenue), the site plan was submitted to Mn/DOT for review. At 
this time no comments have been received from Mn/DOT, but if any comments are 
received, it will be a condition of approval to satisfy those comments.  

 
 The off-street parking requirements for restaurants is one off-street parking space for 

every three seats. It has been stated by the applicant that the capacity for the 
restaurant is ninety people so that means thirty off-street parking spaces will be 
required. The site plan shows only twenty-three off-street parking spaces and some of 
those will need to be removed or adjusted. Parking and maneuvering areas must be set 
back ten feet from all property lines or road easements and all parking areas are to be 
surfaced with an improved surface, which consists of either concrete, asphalt of made 
of pavers according to minimum City specifications unless waived by the City. 

 

47



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 3 

Under section 152.063 of the zoning ordinance it states that the City may modify the 
parking requirements in the C-2 district, if it is determined that he use is consistent with 
the purpose of the district and that street parking is sufficient to accommodate the use. 
In this case the City will have to decide if the applicant will be required to upgrade the 
off-street parking facilities and if sufficient parking exists on the street to accommodate 
the shortage of off-street parking spaces located on the property.  
 
If the City does require the off-street parking areas to be upgraded, the following items 
should be considered. 
 
1.  The angled parking on the north side of the building shall be changed to be angled 

so the oncoming traffic from the west can access the spots or changed to 
perpendicular.  

2. The handicapped stall shall be moved to give better access to the stall and no 
access shall be allowed directly from State Highway 25. 

3. A sidewalk or designated walk area should be provided around the building to allow 
customers who park in the off-street parking stalls to be able to access the building. 

4. A dumpster or trash enclosure area needs to be provided somewhere on the site. 
This most likely will mean the loss of at least one off-street parking stall. 

5. All off-street parking shall be setback at least ten feet from all property lines and 
right of way easements. 

6. The zoning ordinance requires a ten foot setback to all property lines. It will need to 
be determined if this will be required or not. 

 
If the City determines that sufficient off-street parking does not exist on the adjacent 
street, then a variance would be needed to reduce the required number of off-street 
parking spaces or the applicant would have to find a way to provide the correct number 
of off-street parking spaces. This could include leasing or purchasing off-street parking 
spaces on adjacent property or reducing the overall capacity of the restaurant.  
 
A site plan was attached to the Planning Commission staff report that showed some 
possible reconfigurations for the off-street parking facilities for the property. After 
discussion by the Planning Commission and as part of the motion recommending 
approval of the site plan, the following was recommended: 
 
1. That the handicapped parking space be located on the north side of the building. 
2. That the angled parking on the north side of the building is changed to 

perpendicular parking. 
3. That a some sort of delineated walkway or sidewalk is located on the west side of 

the building to separate the parking from the building allowing the pedestrians 
access to the entrance without having to walk all the way around the parked cars. 

4. That sufficient parking exists on the streets adjacent to the property to allow for the 
reduction in off-street parking spaces 

5. That the pavement requirement for the parking lot is waived at this time.  
6. That a trash dumpster is located on the property that is accessible for pick up. 

 
Outdoor  
Storage: All materials, supplies, merchandise or other similar matter not on display for direct 

sale, rental or lease to the ultimate consumer or user, except those items exempt under 
section 152.090 of the zoning ordinance, shall be stored within a completely enclosed 
building or within the confines of a 100% opaque wall or fence not less than six feet or 
more than eight feet in height. Such a screen wall or fence shall be designed and 
constructed as to be architecturally harmonious with the principal structure and located 
so as to not extend within twenty-five feet of any street. Landscaping (trees, shrubs, 
grass and other plantings) shall be on the right-of-way side of any screening or fencing. 
A screen planting may be substituted for a screen wall or fence at the discretion of the 
City Council, provided that any such screen planting shall fulfill the foregoing height and 

48



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 4 

opacity requirements throughout each season of the year within 24 months after date of 
planting, and that no such screen planting shall be located across any existing 
easements. 

 
 One item that needs to be addressed is the trash enclosure. The site plan does not 

show a trash enclosure on the property, but one will be needed. It will have to be 
discussed where this trash enclosure will be located and how it will be accessed.  

 
Surface Water  
Management: Stormwater management for the site will be reviewed by the City Engineer. If required 

the City Engineer will comment on any surface water management items. It is expected 
that if the Planning Commission and City Council do not require any off-street parking 
upgrades at this time, that no stormwater management will be required. If in the future 
off-street parking is required or proposed, the applicant shall be required to provide a 
grading plan and stormwater management plan. 

 
City Engineer  
Review: Any comments or conditions from the City Engineer will need to be satisfied by the 

applicant as part of this site plan review. 
 
Signage: No signage is being proposed at this time. If signage is proposed it would have to meet 

the requirements of the sections of the zoning ordinance related to signs, which are 
sections 152.120 through 152.133. 

 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions: All general lighting employed on site must be directed away from adjoining properties. 

Direct or reflected glare from flood lights and spot lights, as differentiated from general 
illumination on the site, shall not be visible beyond the subject parcel. Noise and 
vibration generated from any use shall be in compliance with and regulated by the 
MPCA rules.  

 
CONDITIONS 
 
Site Plan Review 
The following conditions are recommended to be included if the City Council recommends approval of the 
site plan review for a new restaurant to be located in the C-2 Central Business District at 421 Ash 
Avenue. These conditions may be subject to modification depending upon the outcome at the City 
Council meeting. 
 
1. Signage. That any proposed signage meet the standards set forth in Sections 152.120 through 

152.133 of Title XV: Land Usage, Chapter 152 Zoning of the City of Mayer Municipal code and that all 
required sign permits are issued prior to installation of any signage.  

 
2. Lighting.  All general lighting employed on site must be directed away from adjoining properties. 

Direct or reflected glare from flood lights and spot lights, as differentiated from general illumination on 
the site, shall not be visible beyond the subject parcel. 

 
3. Noise and Vibration. Noise and vibration generated from any use shall be in compliance with and 

regulated by the MPCA rules. 
 
4. Outdoor Storage. Any outdoor storage shall meet the requirements of section 152.090 Outdoor 

Storage and section 152.091 Screening the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
5. Off-street Parking. That the off-street parking requirements for the number of required off-street 

parking stalls, off-street parking setbacks and paving is waived by the City per the zoning ordinance. 
The off-street parking layout shall also be adjusted so that the handicapped parking space be located 
on the north side of the building and not on the east side of the building; that the angled parking on 

49



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 5 

the north side of the building is changed to perpendicular parking; and that some sort of delineated 
walkway or sidewalk is located on the west side and/or south side of the building to separate the 
parking from the building allowing the pedestrians access to the entrance without having to walk all 
the way around the parked cars. 

 
6. Trash Pick Up. A trash dumpster shall be required to be located on the property that is accessible for 

pick up.  
 
7. Mn/DOT Comments. It shall be a condition of approval that any comments or conditions from 

Mn/DOT shall be satisfied by the applicant. 
 
8. City Engineer Review. Any comments or conditions from the City Engineer will need to be satisfied 

by the applicant as part of this site plan review. 
 
9. Stormwater Management. If any stormwater management is required, stormwater shall be managed 

in accordance with the National Urban Runoff Program (NURP) standards for the design of new 
stormwater ponds. The provisions of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s urban “best 
management practices,” titled “Protecting Water Quality in Urban Areas,” shall be used to review any 
proposed development in order to reduce non-point source pollutant loadings in stormwater runoff. 

 
10. Building Permit.  All building permits that are required, shall be approved, paid for and issued prior 

to construction. 
 
11. Miscellaneous Permits. That all appropriate permits for the restaurant are in place prior to the 

restaurant opening. This could include, but not limited to, the NPDES permit from the MPCA if any 
stormwater management is required. 

 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
 
After review and discussion by the members of the City Council, a motion is in order to approve, deny or 
to table the site plan review request. 
 
Possible action items - Site Plan Review  
1. Approve the site plan review subject to conditions. 
2. Table the site plan review to a date specific, and provide the applicant with direction on the issues 

that have been discussed. 
3. Deny the site plan review. 
 
If you have any questions relating to the site plan review for the new restaurant to be located at 421 Ash 
Avenue prior to the City Council meeting, please feel free to contact me at:  jandersonmdg@gmail.com or 
call direct at 952-855-4596. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
 

John Anderson 
 
John Anderson, Associate 
Consulting Planner, City of Mayer 

 
 
 
 

  

50



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 6 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map for 421 Ash Avenue  
Exhibit B - Site Plan dated February 22, 2019 
Exhibit C - Off-street Parking Possible Reconfiguration 

 

51



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 7 

Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map for 421 Ash Avenue 
 

 

52



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 8 

Exhibit B - Site Plan dated February 22, 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 9 

Exhibit C - Off-street Parking Possible Reconfiguration 
 

54



CITY OF MAYER 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 3-11-19-15 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SITE PLAN FOR A NEW RESTAURANT TO BE LOCATED AT 421 

ASH AVENUE IN THE C-2 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT  
 

 
WHEREAS, Eliceo Salomon-Vasquez (the "Applicant" and "Owner"), has submitted a request for site 
plan approval for a new restaurant in conformance with Section 152.031 of the Zoning Ordinance relating 
to site plan review on property located at 421 Ash Avenue, with a PID number of 50.22601.30 (the 
"Property"); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned C-2 Central Business District and a restaurant is a permitted use in 
that district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is designated Existing MUSA Infill/Redevelopment on the future land use map 
and no permit shall be issued until a site plan has been reviewed and approved by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, a copy of the proposed site plan materials and application were available at the City Offices 
for public viewing; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 152.031 of the Zoning Ordinance outlines Information Requirements and Procedure 
for site plan approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the site plan at the March 5, 2019 Planning Commission 
meeting at which time they recommended approval of the site plan, subject to conditions, on a 5-0 vote; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission added the following requirements to the off-street parking layout 
as part of the recommendation for approval, and 
 
1. That the handicapped parking space be located on the north side of the building. 
2. That the angled parking on the north side of the building is changed to perpendicular parking. 
3. That a some sort of delineated walkway or sidewalk is located on the west side of the building to 

separate the parking from the building allowing the pedestrians access to the entrance without 
having to walk all the way around the parked cars. 

4. That sufficient parking exists on the streets adjacent to the property to allow for the reduction in off-
street parking spaces 

5. That the pavement requirement for the parking lot is waived at this time.  
6. That a trash dumpster is located on the property that is accessible for pick up. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the site plan on March 11, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council makes the following findings of fact in support of granting approval of the 
site plan: 
 
A. The legal description of the subject properties is:  Lot 5 & 6, Block 3, Haueter's 2nd Addition to 

Mayer, according to the record plat thereof, Carver County, Minnesota. 
 
B. Planning Report dated March 6, 2019 shall be the governing document which includes the following 

Exhibits: 
 

Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map for 421 Ash Avenue  
Exhibit B - Site Plan dated February 22, 2019 
Exhibit C - Off-street Parking Possible Reconfiguration 

 

55



C. The aerial Location Map for 421 Ash Avenue is attached as Exhibit A. 
 
D. The site plan dated February 22, 2019 is attached as Exhibit B. 
 
E. The off-street parking possible reconfiguration  is attached as Exhibit C. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mayer, Minnesota, that it 
hereby approves the site plan for a new restaurant to be know as Agave Mexican Restaurant to be 
located at 421 Ash Avenue in the C-2 Central Business District, subject to the following conditions:  
 
1. Signage. That any proposed signage meet the standards set forth in Sections 152.120 through 

152.133 of Title XV: Land Usage, Chapter 152 Zoning of the City of Mayer Municipal code and that 
all required sign permits are issued prior to installation of any signage.  

 
2. Lighting.  All general lighting employed on site must be directed away from adjoining properties. 

Direct or reflected glare from flood lights and spot lights, as differentiated from general illumination 
on the site, shall not be visible beyond the subject parcel. 

 
3. Noise and Vibration. Noise and vibration generated from any use shall be in compliance with and 

regulated by the MPCA rules. 
 
4. Outdoor Storage. Any outdoor storage shall meet the requirements of section 152.090 Outdoor 

Storage and section 152.091 Screening the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
5. Off-street Parking. That the off-street parking requirements for the number of required off-street 

parking stalls, off-street parking setbacks and paving is waived by the City per the zoning ordinance. 
The off-street parking layout shall also be adjusted so that the handicapped parking space be 
located on the north side of the building and not on the east side of the building; that the angled 
parking on the north side of the building is changed to perpendicular parking; and that some sort of 
delineated walkway or sidewalk is located on the west side and/or south side of the building to 
separate the parking from the building allowing the pedestrians access to the entrance without 
having to walk all the way around the parked cars. 

 
6. Trash Pick Up. A trash dumpster shall be required to be located on the property that is accessible 

for pick up.  
 
7. Mn/DOT Comments. It shall be a condition of approval that any comments or conditions from 

Mn/DOT shall be satisfied by the applicant. 
 
8. City Engineer Review. Any comments or conditions from the City Engineer will need to be satisfied 

by the applicant as part of this site plan review. 
 
9. Stormwater Management. If any stormwater management is required, stormwater shall be 

managed in accordance with the National Urban Runoff Program (NURP) standards for the design of 
new stormwater ponds. The provisions of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s urban “best 
management practices,” titled “Protecting Water Quality in Urban Areas,” shall be used to review any 
proposed development in order to reduce non-point source pollutant loadings in stormwater runoff. 

 
10. Building Permit.  All building permits that are required, shall be approved, paid for and issued prior 

to construction. 
 
11. Miscellaneous Permits. That all appropriate permits for the restaurant are in place prior to the 

restaurant opening. This could include, but not limited to, the NPDES permit from the MPCA if any 
stormwater management is required. 

 
 

56



Adopted by the Mayer City Council this 11th day of March, 2019. 
 

 
            
      Mayor Mike Dodge 

Attest: 
 
 
        
Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
 
The following Council Members voted in favor:  
The following Council Members voted against or abstained:  
 

Whereupon the motion was duly passed and executed. 
 
 
Published:  
Filed with Carver County: 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map for 421 Ash Avenue  
Exhibit B - Site Plan dated February 22, 2019 
Exhibit C - Off-street Parking Possible Reconfiguration 
 

 
 
 
 

57



Exhibit A - Aerial Location Map for 421 Ash Avenue 
 

 

58



Exhibit B - Site Plan dated February 22, 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 
Exhibit C - Off-street Parking Possible Reconfiguration 

 

60



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 1 

Mayer City Council 
Staff Report 

     March 6, 2019 
Text Amendment Regarding Floodplain Management Text 

 
APPLICATION DATA 
 
Meeting Date:    March 11, 2019 
 
Applicant:  This is a City of Mayer initiated text amendment. 
 
   
BACKGROUND DATA 
 
Action  
Requested: To amend sections of the zoning ordinance and floodplain management chapter to 

be consistent with each other.  The City of Mayer has initiated the update of Chapter 
152 Zoning, Section 152.003 Definitions and Chapter 154 Floodplain Management, 
Section 154.02(F) and Section 154.08(A)(4) of the City of Mayer Municipal code. 

 
Background: The City Council approved the updated floodplain management chapter and related 

sections in the fall of 2018. It has since come to the attention of staff there was a 
inconsistent definition for recreational vehicles in the zoning ordinance and floodplain 
ordinance and that one paragraph of the floodplain management chapter conflicted 
with another paragraph. This text amendment is being brought forward to correct 
these items. 

 
 At the March 5, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission 

recommended on a 5-0 vote to approve the text amendment. 
 

The existing language in relation to this text amendment under Chapter 154 
Floodplain Management and sections 152.003 Definitions, within Chapter 152 Zoning 
are listed below. The proposed new text is underlined, the text proposed to be 
deleted is striked-through and the text proposed to stay the same is regular.  
 

152.003  DEFINITIONS. 
 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT. Any type of operable and licensed vehicle as required 

by the state, either self-powered or drawn by another vehicle, that is used primarily for purposes of 
recreation or transportation of recreational vehicles, equipment, and the like. A vehicle that is built on a 
single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, is designed 
to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck, and is designed primarily not for use as 
a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use, 
including but not limited to campers, motor homes, travel trailers, slide in campers, airplanes, converted 
buses, snowmobiles and trailers, camper trailers, motorcycle trailers, snowmobile trailers, horse trailers, 
boats/watercraft and trailers, fish house, all terrain vehicles and the like. A fish house, boat, snowmobile 
or other recreational vehicle when stored or kept on a trailer shall be considered as one recreational 
vehicle. For the purposes of this ordinance, the term recreational vehicle is synonymous with the term 
“travel trailer/travel vehicle.” 

 
RECREATION VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT. Includes, but is not limited to, operable and licensed, as 

required by the state, travel trailers, chassis mounted campers, motor homes, tent trailers, slide in 
campers, airplanes, and converted buses, snowmobiles and trailers, boats/watercraft and trailers, all-
terrain vehicles, motorcycles and utility trailers. A fish house, boat, snowmobile or other recreational 
vehicle when stored or kept on a trailer shall be considered as one recreational vehicle. A recreational 
vehicle does not include a motor vehicle designed or used for off road racing, off road use or demolition 
derby. 

61



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 2 

 
 
CHAPTER  154 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT. 
 

CHAPTER 154:  FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
154.02      GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
F.  Definitions:  Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance must be 

interpreted according to common usage and so as to give this ordinance its most reasonable 
application. 

 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT. Any type of operable and licensed vehicle as required 

by the state, either self-powered or drawn by another vehicle, that is used primarily for purposes of 
recreation or transportation of recreational vehicles, equipment, and the like. A vehicle that is built on a 
single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, is designed 
to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck, and is designed primarily not for use as 
a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use, 
including but not limited to campers, motor homes, travel trailers, slide in campers, airplanes, converted 
buses, snowmobiles and trailers, camper trailers, motorcycle trailers, snowmobile trailers, horse trailers, 
boats/watercraft and trailers, fish house, all terrain vehicles and the like. A fish house, boat, snowmobile 
or other recreational vehicle when stored or kept on a trailer shall be considered as one recreational 
vehicle. For the purposes of this ordinance, the term recreational vehicle is synonymous with the term 
“travel trailer/travel vehicle.” 

 
 
154.08      SUBDIVISION STANDARDS. 
 
A.  Subdivisions:  No land may be subdivided which is unsuitable for reasons of flooding or inadequate 

drainage, water supply or sewage treatment facilities. Manufactured home parks and recreational 
vehicle parks or campgrounds are considered subdivisions under this ordinance.  
 
4.   Reserved for General Floodplain District (GF). In the General Floodplain District, applicants must 

provide the information required in Section 154.07(B) of this ordinance to determine the regional 
flood elevation, the Floodway and Flood Fringe District boundaries and the regulatory flood 
protection elevation for the subdivision site. 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
 
After review and discussion by the members of the City Council, a motion is in order to approve, deny or 
to table the text amendment. 
 
Possible action items - Text Amendment  
1. Approve the text amendment. 
2. Table the text amendment to a date specific, and provide the applicant with direction on the issues 

that have been discussed. 
3. Deny the text amendment request. 
 
If you have any questions relating to the text amendment prior to the City Council meeting, please feel 
free to contact me at:  jandersonmdg@gmail.com or call direct at 952-855-4596. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 3 

Sincerely, 
 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
 

John Anderson 
 
John Anderson, Associate 
Consulting Planner, City of Mayer 

 
  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
None. 
 

 
 

63



CITY OF MAYER 
ORDINANCE #228 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE XV: LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 152 ZONING, SECTION 

152.003 DEFINITIONS AND CHAPTER 154 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT, SECTION 
154.02(F) AND SECTION 154.08(A)(4) OF THE CITY OF MAYER MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAYER THAT THE FOLLOWING 
SECTION OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE, RELATED TO DEFINITIONS AND CHAPTER 154 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT OF THE CITY CODE FOR THE CITY OF MAYER BE AMENDED 
TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Title XV: Land Usage, Chapter 152 Zoning, Section 152.003 Definitions, of the City of 
Mayer Municipal Code, is hereby amended to add the provisions with underlined text and delete 
the provisions with the strike-through text as follows: 
 
152.003  DEFINITIONS. 
 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT. Any type of operable and licensed vehicle as 
required by the state, either self-powered or drawn by another vehicle, that is used primarily for 
purposes of recreation or transportation of recreational vehicles, equipment, and the like. A 
vehicle that is built on a single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest 
horizontal projection, is designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck, 
and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use, including but not limited to campers, motor homes, 
travel trailers, slide in campers, airplanes, converted buses, snowmobiles and trailers, camper 
trailers, motorcycle trailers, snowmobile trailers, horse trailers, boats/watercraft and trailers, fish 
house, all terrain vehicles and the like. A fish house, boat, snowmobile or other recreational 
vehicle when stored or kept on a trailer shall be considered as one recreational vehicle. For the 
purposes of this ordinance, the term recreational vehicle is synonymous with the term “travel 
trailer/travel vehicle.” 

 
RECREATION VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT. Includes, but is not limited to, operable and 

licensed, as required by the state, travel trailers, chassis mounted campers, motor homes, tent 
trailers, slide in campers, airplanes, and converted buses, snowmobiles and trailers, 
boats/watercraft and trailers, all-terrain vehicles, motorcycles and utility trailers. A fish house, 
boat, snowmobile or other recreational vehicle when stored or kept on a trailer shall be 
considered as one recreational vehicle. A recreational vehicle does not include a motor vehicle 
designed or used for off road racing, off road use or demolition derby. 
 
 
Section 2. Title XV: Land Usage, Chapter 154 Floodplain Management, Section 154.02 General 
Provisions, Letter F Definitions, Recreational Vehicle of the City of Mayer Municipal Code, is 
hereby amended to add the provisions with underlined text as follows: 
 
CHAPTER  154 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT. 
 

CHAPTER 154:  FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
154.02      GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
F.  Definitions:  Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance must 

be interpreted according to common usage and so as to give this ordinance its most 
reasonable application. 

 

64

Roberta Cronquist
Zoning and FP Ordinances updated to Patch. 

Roberta Cronquist
Edited these and some of the Zoning Ordinance Definitions to match. 



RECREATIONAL VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT. Any type of operable and licensed vehicle as 
required by the state, either self-powered or drawn by another vehicle, that is used primarily for 
purposes of recreation or transportation of recreational vehicles, equipment, and the like. A 
vehicle that is built on a single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest 
horizontal projection, is designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck, 
and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use, including but not limited to campers, motor homes, 
travel trailers, slide in campers, airplanes, converted buses, snowmobiles and trailers, camper 
trailers, motorcycle trailers, snowmobile trailers, horse trailers, boats/watercraft and trailers, fish 
house, all terrain vehicles and the like. A fish house, boat, snowmobile or other recreational 
vehicle when stored or kept on a trailer shall be considered as one recreational vehicle. For the 
purposes of this ordinance, the term recreational vehicle is synonymous with the term “travel 
trailer/travel vehicle.” 
 
 
Section 3. Title XV: Land Usage, Chapter 154 Floodplain Management, Section 154.08 
Subdivision Standards, Letter A Subdivisions, Number 4 of the City of Mayer Municipal Code, is 
hereby amended to add the provisions with underlined text and delete the provisions with the 
strike-through text as follows: 
 
154.08      SUBDIVISION STANDARDS. 
 
A.  Subdivisions:  No land may be subdivided which is unsuitable for reasons of flooding or 

inadequate drainage, water supply or sewage treatment facilities. Manufactured home parks 
and recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds are considered subdivisions under this 
ordinance.  
 
4.   Reserved for General Floodplain District (GF). In the General Floodplain District, 

applicants must provide the information required in Section 154.07(B) of this ordinance to 
determine the regional flood elevation, the Floodway and Flood Fringe District boundaries 
and the regulatory flood protection elevation for the subdivision site. 

 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mayer, Carver County, Minnesota this 11th day of 
March, 2019. 
 
            
      Mike Dodge 

Mayor 
ATTEST:           
      Moved by: 
      Seconded by: 
      
Margaret McCallum 
City Administrator     
 
Published:  
Filed with Carver County: 
 

65

Roberta Cronquist
Zoning and FP Ordinances updated to Patch. 

Roberta Cronquist
If the City of Mayer chooses not to include the future growth area FIRM Panels in Section 154.02(B), then this text can be deleted and replaced with:“Reserved for General Floodplain District”



Request for Council Action Memorandum 
 
Item:  Part Time Seasonal Public Works Employee   
Meeting Date: March 11, 2019  
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Recommendations/Council Action/Motion Requested: 
A review and discuss the advertising for a seasonal public works employee.   
 
Details: 
In past the City has hired a part time seasonal employee to assist public works for the summer 
season.  
 
The position is assigned to parks for mowing, weed whipping, picking up garbage and watering 
of flower pots.  
 
The City Council did budget for 2019 a part time seasonal person for 30 hours per week for 13 
weeks at $12.00 per hour.  
 
Attachments:  
Job Announcement.  

66



City of Mayer Employment Opportunity: Seasonal Public Works Employee 
 
Details:  
The City of Mayer is accepting applications for a part time Seasonal Public Works Employee.  
 
The City is looking for a reliable, independent, and responsible individual to perform summer seasonal 
maintenance work in the Public Works Department. Under the supervision of the Public Works 
Department, this position will perform outdoor maintenance work in the upkeep of the City’s parks, 
park equipment that includes, but is not limited to, mowing, weed whipping, picking up garbage, and 
the watering of flower pots. 
 
Candidates must be able to operate small equipment such as ride on mowers, string trimmers, push 
mowers, and other assorted hand tools and perform light custodial work.  
 
Minimum qualifications: Responsible individual, at least 16 years of age. Must have the ability to lift 35 
pounds frequently, and work independently outside for about 30 hours per week. Must have a valid 
Class D driver’s license.  
 
Hours are 7:00 a.m. – 3:30 p.m., Monday – Friday. (30 hours per week). Wage is $12.00. Candidates 
must complete a City of Mayer employment application. Position will be open until filled. Visit 
www.cityofmayer.com to obtain application.  
 
Apply: 
Submit application and resume to the City of Mayer: 413 Bluejay Avenue, Mayer, MN 55360, or by email 
to Margaret.mccallum@cityofmayer.com.  
 
For more information, please visit www.cityofmayer.com for application materials.  
 
 

67

http://www.cityofmayer.com/
mailto:Margaret.mccallum@cityofmayer.com
http://www.cityofmayer.com/


City of Mayer 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, March 5, 2019 

 
Commission Members Present: Council Liaison Tice Stieve-McPadden, Commissioners Les 
Hahn, Michael Sommerfeld, Don Wachholz, Barney Johnson and Patty Lanting. 
 
Commission Members Absent: Chairperson Tom Stifter. 
 
Others Present:  Eliceo Salomon-Vasquez, Jerry Vlaminck and Mayor Mike Dodge. 
 
Staff Present: Planning Consultant John Anderson of Municipal Development Group, LLC 
             
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
Meeting called to order at 6:33 PM by former Vice-Chairperson Hahn. 
 
ADOPT AGENDA. 
A motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner Wachholz and seconded by 
Commissioner Johnson.  Motion carried 5/0. 
 
SWEARING IN OF NEW PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS. 
Planning Consultant Anderson read the oath of office to sear in new Planning Commission 
member Michael Sommerfeld. 
 
ELECTION OF THE CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON. 
A motion to elect Patty Lanting to the position of Vice-Chairperson was made by commissioner 
Johnson and seconded by Commissioner Hahn. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
A motion to elect Tom Stifter to the position of Chairperson was made by Vice-Chairperson 
Lanting and seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 
A motion to approve the January 2, 2019 Planning Commission minutes was made by 
Commissioner Hahn and seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO TITLE XV: LAND USAGE, 
CHAPTER 152: ZONING, SECTION 152.003 DEFINITIONS AND CHAPTER 154 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT, SECTION 154.02(F) AND SECTION 154.08(A)(4) OF 
THE CITY OF MAYER MUNICIPAL CODE. 
At 6:39 PM Vice-Chairperson Lanting opened the public hearing. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson presented the text amendment and stated that these changes were 
needed after the City started to codify the City code and add the text amendments that were 
approved over the last three to four years. Two inconsistencies were found in the recently 
approved floodplain ordinance update and this text amendment is just a housekeeping item 
fixings those inconsistencies. 
 
Commissioner Hahn asked about the 400 square foot portion of the recreational vehicles and 
equipment definition. 

68



 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated that this language comes from the recommended language 
from the Minnesota DNR template. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Lanting closed the public hearing at 6:44 PM. 
 
A motion to recommend approval of the text amendment was made by Commissioner Johnson 
and seconded by Commissioner Hahn. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR AGAVE MEXICAN RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 421 ASH 
AVENUE. 
At 6:46 PM, Planning Consultant Anderson presented the information for the site plan review.  
He stated that the biggest issue is the off-street parking and how that should be configured and if 
the proposed number of stalls is enough off-street parking for this site and whether the parking 
area should be paved or not. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Lanting asked if any comments were received from the public. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated no comments were received. 
 
Commissioner Hahn stated that he use to work in this building when it was a service station and 
garage and that the angled parking proposed on the north side of the building will not work and 
that those stalls will need to be perpendicular to the building. He also stated that at some point in 
the future, 5th Street could be upgraded to a urban section of roadway with curb and gutter. 
Commissioner Hahn presented a sketch that shows how the off-street parking could be configured 
on the property. 
 
A motion to recommend approval of the site plan was made by Commissioner Hahn and 
seconded by Commissioner Wachholz. The motion included changing condition number 6 to just 
require a trash dumpster to be located on site and to be accessible and adding the requirements for 
off-street parking such as waiving the paving of the parking area, revising the off-street parking 
layout to add a sidewalk on the south and/or west side of the building, to make the off-street 
parking on the north side of the building perpendicular and to move the handicapped stall to the 
north side of the building. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
NEXT MEETING. 
Next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, April 2, 2019.  
 
COMMISSIONERS REPORT. 
Commissioner Hahn stated that he expects Mn/DOT to upgrade and reconstruct State Highway 
25 north of County Road 30 and the regional trail this summer and that in 2020 he expects 
Mn/DOT to upgrade State Highway 25 south of County Road 30 and the regional trail and stated 
that the City should look into having this section upgraded with curb, gutter and sidewalks to a 
urban section of roadway to the south end of the City. 
 
ADJOUNRNMENT. 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wachholz and seconded by Commissioner Johnson to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:35 PM.  Motion carried 5/0. 

69


	0 Agenda 3.11.19 City Council Meeting Agenda
	1 Council Meeting 022519
	APPROVE AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
	COUNCIL REPORTS
	ADJOURN

	2 Work Session 022519
	3 Payables
	March 11, 2019 Payables

	4 Fee Schedule
	CITY OF MAYER
	CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA
	ORDINANCE #227
	Attachment B
	CITY OF MAYER
	CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA
	ORDINANCE #227

	4 2019 Final fee schedule_Amended
	2019 Administrative Fees
	2019 Building Permit
	2019 Planning Fees
	2019 Licenses
	2019 Utilities Fees
	2019 Fire Department Fees
	2019 Staff Fees

	7 Mayer, City of 4 Qtr Financial Report
	8 Memo - Fund Transfers and Closing
	8 Fund Transfer Resolution
	10 Generator - Memo
	10 CityofMayerSpec
	11 CC MEMO Site Plan Agave 3-6-19
	11 RESO Agave Site Plan 3-11-19
	CITY OF MAYER
	CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 3-11-19-15
	WHEREAS, the Property is zoned C-2 Central Business District and a restaurant is a permitted use in that district; and
	WHEREAS, the Property is designated Existing MUSA Infill/Redevelopment on the future land use map and no permit shall be issued until a site plan has been reviewed and approved by the City; and
	WHEREAS, section 152.031 of the Zoning Ordinance outlines Information Requirements and Procedure for site plan approval; and
	1. That the handicapped parking space be located on the north side of the building.
	2. That the angled parking on the north side of the building is changed to perpendicular parking.
	3. That a some sort of delineated walkway or sidewalk is located on the west side of the building to separate the parking from the building allowing the pedestrians access to the entrance without having to walk all the way around the parked cars.
	4. That sufficient parking exists on the streets adjacent to the property to allow for the reduction in off-street parking spaces
	5. That the pavement requirement for the parking lot is waived at this time.
	6. That a trash dumpster is located on the property that is accessible for pick up.

	Margaret McCallum, City Administrator

	12 CC MEMO Floodplain Text Amendment 3-6-19
	12 ORD Floodplain Changes 3-11-19
	CITY OF MAYER
	ORDINANCE #228
	Recreation Vehicle and Equipment. Includes, but is not limited to, operable and licensed, as required by the state, travel trailers, chassis mounted campers, motor homes, tent trailers, slide in campers, airplanes, and converted buses, snowmobiles and...
	154.02      GENERAL PROVISIONS
	154.08      SUBDIVISION STANDARDS.
	A.  Subdivisions:  No land may be subdivided which is unsuitable for reasons of flooding or inadequate drainage, water supply or sewage treatment facilities. Manufactured home parks and recreational vehicle parks or campgrounds are considered subdivis...
	4.   Reserved for General Floodplain District (GF). In the General Floodplain District , applicants must provide the information required in Section 154.07(B) of this ordinance to determine the regional flood elevation, the Floodway and Flood Fringe D...


	Mike Dodge
	Mayor
	Margaret McCallum

	13 Seasonal Employee - Memo
	13 City of Mayer Employment Opportunity
	14 PC Minutes 3-5-19
	City of Mayer
	Planning Commission
	Meeting Minutes
	Tuesday, March 5, 2019
	Commission Members Present: Council Liaison Tice Stieve-McPadden, Commissioners Les Hahn, Michael Sommerfeld, Don Wachholz, Barney Johnson and Patty Lanting.
	Commission Members Absent: Chairperson Tom Stifter.
	Others Present:  Eliceo Salomon-Vasquez, Jerry Vlaminck and Mayor Mike Dodge.
	Staff Present: Planning Consultant John Anderson of Municipal Development Group, LLC
	CALL MEETING TO ORDER.
	Meeting called to order at 6:33 PM by former Vice-Chairperson Hahn.
	ADOPT AGENDA.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES.
	A motion to recommend approval of the text amendment was made by Commissioner Johnson and seconded by Commissioner Hahn. Motion carried 5/0.
	SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR AGAVE MEXICAN RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 421 ASH AVENUE.
	At 6:46 PM, Planning Consultant Anderson presented the information for the site plan review.  He stated that the biggest issue is the off-street parking and how that should be configured and if the proposed number of stalls is enough off-street parkin...
	Vice-Chairperson Lanting asked if any comments were received from the public.
	Planning Consultant Anderson stated no comments were received.
	Commissioner Hahn stated that he use to work in this building when it was a service station and garage and that the angled parking proposed on the north side of the building will not work and that those stalls will need to be perpendicular to the buil...
	A motion to recommend approval of the site plan was made by Commissioner Hahn and seconded by Commissioner Wachholz. The motion included changing condition number 6 to just require a trash dumpster to be located on site and to be accessible and adding...
	NEXT MEETING.
	Next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, April 2, 2019.
	COMMISSIONERS REPORT.
	ADJOUNRNMENT.




